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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Updater Services Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Updater Services Private
Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company™), and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company
and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group™) comprising of the consolidated Balance sheet
as at March 31 2021, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, including other comprehensive
income, the consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the
consolidated financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and
based on the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other
financial information of the subsidiaries, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act™) in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group, as at March 3 1, 2021, their consolidated profit including
other comprehensive income, their consolidated cash flows and the consolidated statement of changes
in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Group, in accordance with the
"Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial
statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 56 to the consolidated IND AS financial statements relating to rectification
and restatement of items described therein (primarily intangible assets and deferred taxes) as at and for
the year ended March 31, 2020 in accordance with Ind AS 8 "Accounting Policies, Change in
Accounting Estimates and Errors”. Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter.

Other Information
The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other

information comprises the information included in the Board of Director’s report, but does not include
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
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not express any form ot assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other
comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated statement of changes in equity of the
Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. The respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
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error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

+  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of
such controls.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

+  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group of which we are the independent auditors, to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the
consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such
other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits
carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Other Matter

(a) We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information, in respect of 7 subsidiaries,
whose financial statements include total assets of Rs 10,104.45 lakhs as at March 31, 2021, and total
revenues of Rs 16,694.65 and net cash inflows of Rs 1,261.59 lakhs for the year ended on that date.
These financial statement and other financial information have been audited by other auditors, which
financial statements, other financial information and auditor’s reports have been furnished to us by
the management. Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the
amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, and our report in terms of sub-
sections (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries , is based
solely on the report(s) of such other auditors.
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Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below. is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our
reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements and other
financial information certified by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the
other auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial information of subsidiaries, as
noted in the ‘other matter’ paragraph we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

()

(2)

(h)

We/the other auditors whose report we have relied upon have sought and obtained all the
information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidation of the financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination
of those books and reports of the other auditors;

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including the
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements;

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as
on March 31, 2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the
reports of the statutory auditors who are appointed under Section 139 of the Act, of its subsidiary
companies, none of the directors of the Group’s companies, incorporated in India, is disqualified
as on March 31, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements of the Holding Company and its three subsidiary companies, incorporated in
India, and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure
1”" to this report; Based on the information and explanation provided to us, six subsidiaries of the
Company incorporated in India is exempted from reporting on internal financial controls over
financial reporting vide MCA notification no G.S.R 583(E) dated June 13, 2017 read with
corrigendum date July 13, 2017,

The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Holding
Company, its subsidiaries incorporated in India for the year ended March 31, 2021;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of
the report of the other auditors on separate financial statements as also the other financial
information of the subsidiaries, as noted in the *Other matter’ paragraph:
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I.  The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on its
consolidated financial position of the Group, in its consolidated financial statements —
Refer Note 45 to the consolidated financial statements;

ii.  The Group, did not have any material foreseeable losses in long-term contracts
including derivative contracts during the year ended March 3 1,2021; and

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Holding Company, its subsidiaries, incorporated in India
during the year ended March 31, 2021.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

<

per Chirag Shah
Partner
Membership Number: 121648

UDIN: 21121648AAAABX5633
Place of Signature: Chennai
Date: September 24, 2021
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ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF Updater Services Private Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Updater Services Private
Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company™) as of and for the year ended March 31,
2021, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements
of the Holding Company and its three subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in [ndia,
as of that date. Six subsidiaries of the holding Company incorporated in India is exempted from
reporting on internal controls over financial reporting vide MCA notification no. G.S.R. 583 [E] dated
June 12, 2017, read with corrigendum dated July 13, 2017.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Holding Company, its three
subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company's internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both, issued by ICAI. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other

auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to
stisdlidated financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company, its three subsidiary companies, which are companies
incorporated in India, have, maintained in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31,2021, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

Other Matters

Our report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company, in so
far as it relates to these three (3) subsidiaries, which are companies incorporated in India, is based on
the corresponding reports of the auditors of such subsidiaries incorporated in India.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004
per Chirag Shah

Partner

Membership Number: 121648
UDIN: 21121648AAAABX5633

Place of Signature: Chennai
Date: September 24, 2021




Updater Services Private Limited
Consolidated Balance sheet as at March 31, 2021
{All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees wnless otherwise stated)

Particul Not AaL 3t 1\;\s i
articulars Notes ~Mar-
31-Mar-2021 (Restated)
ASSETS
Non- curvent assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 1351.56 1,995.02
Capital Work in Progress 32.00 -
Goodwill JA 4570.27 4,570.27
Other Inlangible assels JA 1,201.60 144417
Right-of-use assets 41 36692 53442
Financial assets
(i) Investments 4 1.00 1.00
(ii) Loans 5 56921 587.73
(iii) Other financial assets 6 1,924.30 1,606.7%
Deferred tax asset (Net) 15 3,643.21 2,717.62
Non-Current tax assets (net) 9 4,895.31 4,971.82
Oiher non-current assets 7 88.20 1027
18,643.58 18439.11
Current assefs
Inventoiics 8 501.41 663.03
Financial assets
{1) Investments 4 403.40 153.40
(ii) Trade receivables 10 20,813.30 29231.08
(iti) Cash and cash equivalents 11 4,558.87 1,743.45
{iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 11A 1.862.63 T22.79
(v) Loans 12 571.34 490,46
(wi) Other financial assets 13 8.070.39 6,641.47
Other current assets 14 3.022.95 3.295.52
39.804.29 42.941.20
Total Assets S58§,447.87 61,380.31
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 16 5,281.75 5,281.75
Other equity 17 23.743.39 19.569.00
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 29,025.14 24,850.75
MNon controlling interest 692.67 454.33
Total Equity 29,717.81 25£S.OS
Non-current liabilities
Finangial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 18 - 0.91
(ii) Lease Liabilities 41 231.87 354.54
(iii) Other Financial liabilities 22A 844.83 1.363.51
Provisions 19 3.396.37 3,234.83
Deferred Tax Liabilities 23 255.61 310.72
4,728.68 5,304.51
Current Liabilities
Finaneial liabilities
{i) Bomrowings 20 1,161.01 8,995.23
(ii} Lease Liabilities 41 217.50 318.80
(iii) Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 21 188.78 769.77
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and stnall enterprises 21 2,796.47 2,923.27
(iv) Other financial liabilities 22 11,743.68 11,045.77
Provisions 24 2,786.90 2,290.85
Current tax liabilities (net) 25 383.68 119.48
Other current liabilities 26 4.523.36 4.307.55
24,001.38 30,770.72
Total Liabilities 28.730.06 36,075.23
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABLITIES 58.447.87 61.380.31
Summary of significant accounting policies 1-2
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements. 3-6l
As per our report of even date
For S.R.Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Updater Services Private Limited

IC

imm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

AN - 9 Sl

hirag Shah LA Raghunandana T.Shanthi
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership No. 121648 DIN ; 0000628914 __- DIN : 0000939218
Balaji Swaminathan L.B. Java:k
Chief Financial Officer Company Sectetary
Place; Chennai Mace: Chennai

Date : September 24, 2021 Date : September 24, 2021



Updater Services Private Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2021

(Al amonnts are in lakhs of ndian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Year Ended
Particulars iy oo 31-Mar-2020
L (Restated)

Income
Revenue from contracts with customers 27 120,358.57 132,396.04
Other income 28 416.04 11861
Finance income 29 215.86 70.92
Total Income 120,990.47 132 58557
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 30 1,593.16 233892
Purchases of traded goods il 1,411.54 2,398.38
Changes in inventories of Finished goods and traded goods 2 156.14 (293.76)
Employee benefils expense 33 98,165.48 10542571
Finance costs 34 684.60 1,053.86
Depreciation and amortization expense 35 1,498.33 1,616.64
Impairmment losses on financial instrument and contract assets 36 468.76 503.51
Other expenses 37 12,128.52 14,805.77
Total Expense 116,106.53 127.849.03
Profit before tax 4,883.94 4,736.54
Tax Expense :

Current tax 38 1.534.25 675.79

Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods 38 13.90 2.94

Deferred tax Charge/ (Credit) 38 (1,002.32) (66.44)
Income tax expense 545.83 612,29
Profit for the year 4,338.11 4,124.25
Other Comprehensive Income:
Items that will not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Re 1t gains/(losses) on defined benefit obligations (net) 81.96 (129.79)
Income tax effect (21.63) 15.41
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 60.33 (114.38)
Total comprehensive Income for the year, net of tax attributable to: 4,398.44 4,009.87
Profit for the year
Attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent 4,086.25 4,134.46

Non-controlling interests 25186 (10.21)
Other Comprehensive income for the year
Attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent 73.12 (136.74)

Nou-controlling interests (12.79) 2238
Total comprehensive income for the year
Attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent 4,159.37 3,997.72

Non-controlling interests 239.07 12.16
Earnings per equity share
Basic (Amount in % ) 39 7.74 7.83
Diluted (Amount in 3 ) 39 7.68 7.78
Summary of significant accounting policies 1-2
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements. 161

As per report of even date

For S.R.Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAJFirm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Updater Services Private Limited

.
N r\" i, \}!\4\ ‘{"‘"

per/LChirag Shah /’ >
Partner © "T. Raghunandana T.Shanthi
Membership No. 121648 Managing Director Director

DIN ; 0000628914 DIN : 0000939218

Balaji Swaminathan LB. Jay:r;L/

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Chennai
Date : September 24, 2021

Place: Chennai
Date : September 24, 20121



Updater Services Private Limited
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2001
(ANl amonnds are in lakhy of Indian Rupees wrless otherwive staied)

No. of shares

Equity shares of Rs 10 each issued, subseribed and fully paid (in 14khs) Amount

Ealance a5 on March 31, 2019 528,17 528175

Add: Shares issued during the year - s

Balance a5 on March 31, 2020 528.17 528175

Add: Shares issued during the year = i

Balance as om March 31, 2021 E28.17 EI81.75

(b) Other equity (Restated)

Capifal General | Securities Employee “Total Equity | Non- Total
Bt dbadl Bk ¥ ption {reserve  (F Stock attributable |Controlling
eta ArNINgs |regerve (Options t i 1 t
Particuln il 0 equity nteres
artleriars (Restated) Reserve shareholders
of parent

At | April 2019 9.507.54 207.50 150.43 559428 - 15459.75 442.16 | 1590191
Profit for the year (Restated) 413446 - - - 413446 (10213 412425
(Other Comprehensive Income {136.74)] - - - - (136.74) nu (114,36
Total comprehensive Income 3997.72 - - bl - 3997.72 1517 400989
Effiect of adoption of Ind AS 116 [214.12) - - - - (214.12)] . (214.12)]
Transfer to general reserve (22.26) - .26 - - - - -
Emplayee stock aplions provided - - - - 31564 325.64 - 31564
| As at Mareh 31, 2020 13268.88 20750 172.69 5,504.28 335.64 19.568.99 45433 20,023.32
Profit for the year 408625 4,086.25 251.86 433811
Crher Comprehensive Income 32T 7337 (13,53} 59.74
Total comprehensive ncome 4,159.52 - - - - 415952 138.33 439785
Transfer 1o general reserve {493.28) 9328 - -
Employee stock options provided 14.89 1489 1489
As at March 31,2021 17335.12 207.50 26597 5,594.28 340.53 13,743.40 69267 24 436.06
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements. 1.61
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of Board of Dircctors

For § R Ballibol & Associates LLP Updater Services Private Limited
Chartered Accountants

Firm Begistration no. 101049W/EIND004 il

> j v ) ¢
4 RASN

per ag B Shah T.Raghunandana T.Shanthi

Partner Managing Director

Menibership No. 121648 DN - (0628914

Balaji Swaminathan L.B. Jayaram
Chief Financial Offfcer Company Sccretary

Place: Chennai Place: Cheneai

Date : September 24, 2021 Date : September 24, 2021



Updater Services Private Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash flows for the year ended March 31. 2021
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise swated)

Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31-Mar-2020
31-Mar-21 {Restated)
Profit before tax 4,883.94 4,736.54
Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows
Depreciation and amortization cxpense 1,408.33 1,616.64
Interest expenses 684,00 1,053.86
Interest income (215.86) (70.92)
Dividend income = (0.60)
[mpairment for expected credit loss of trade receivables 398.34 442.11
Tmpairment for doubtful advances 10.59 61.40
Iimpairment for reimbursement of gratuity 59.83 -
Bad debis and advances written off 10%.03 258.12
Provision for onerous contract 10130 -
Fair value gain on Financial Assets at FVTPL (55.28) (30.66)
Provision no longer required written back (114.96) (45.60)
Liability payable to promoters of acquired subsidiary no longer required written back * (197.35)
{Profity/Loss on sale of investments - (4.15)
Loss on sale of Property, plant and equipment 0.97 788
Profit on Sale of Property, plant and equipment (21.58)
Employee stock option expenses 14.89 32564
Unrealised exchange differences (net) 0.98 645
Operating cash flow before working capital changes 715747 835671
Movements in working capital :
{Increase)/decrease in trade receivables 7.955.04 (5.690.24)
{Increase)/decrease in other financial assets (1,773.63) (2,159.57)
{Increase)/decrease in non - financial assets 24035 (591.36)
(Increase)/decrease in Loans {7.78) (L07.31)
(Increase)/decrease in [nventory 161.62 (183.52)
Increase (decrease) in Provision 556.28 1.619.50
Increase!(decrease) in trade payables (393.81) 611.67
Increase! (decrease) in financial liabilities (10,80} 1,700.06
Increase! (decrease) in other liabilities 21581 [574.78)
Cash generated from /{used in) operations 14,100.55 2,981.16
Income taxcs paid (net of refunds) (1,251.05) {2.44801)
Net cash flow from/ {used in) operating activities 12,849.50 532,25
Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (427.35) (1,345.09)
Purchase of Investments (250,00 (73.85)
Investments in fixed deposits (having original maturity of more than three months) (10,116.03) (554.97)
Redemption/Maturity of fixed deposits 8.976.20 1,018.55
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 67.27 17.54
Interest recemved 182.22 102,17
Dividend received - 0.60
Acquisition of subsidiary - (5.435.15)
Net cash flow from/ (used in) investing activities (1,567.69) (6,270.16)
Cash flow from financing activities
Repayment of long-tenn borowings (0.91) (18.90)
Proceeds from short-term-borrowings 1,947.07 31,683.77
Repayment of short-term-borrowings (9,781.29) {25,536.87)
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities (334.17) (304.07)
Interest paid (297.09) (191.91)
Net cash flow from/ (used in) in financing activities C (8,466.39) 5,632.02
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents A+B+C 2,815.42 (105.88)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,743.45 1.040.33
Additions on acquisition of Subsidiaries - 800.00
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 4,558.87 1,743.45
Non Cash investing and financing activities
Acquisition of Right of use assets 70.19 162.34
Summary of significant accounting policies 1-2
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Consolidated Financial
Statements, 3-61
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Updater Services Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
[All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated]

1. Corporate information

The consolidated financial statements comprise financial statements of Updater Services Private Limited (‘UDSY/
‘Company’) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the Group) for the year ended March 31, 2021. The group is engaged in
providing facility management services like integrated facility management services to various industries such as
information technology enabled services, manufacturing, hospitality and other industries and catering services, which
includes industrial catering, and services at food courts.

Facility management services includes housekeeping, janitorial, garden management, pest control, waste management,
vendor management, cleaning and mail room services, mechanical and electrical services, water management, hygiene
management, plumbing, energy/safety audit, design erection, installation, testing and commissioning and catering
solutions. Information on the Group’s structure is provided in Note 53 Group information, Information on other related
party relationships of the Group is provided in Note 47 Related party transactions.

The consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on
September 24, 2021.

2. Significant accounting policies
2.1 Basis of accounting and preparation of financial statements
i. Compliance with Ind-AS

The consolidated financial statements of the Group are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind
AS’) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read together with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule III to the Companies
Act, 2013.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) which is also the Group’s functional currency.
All values are rounded to nearest lakhs except when otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:
a) Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value as explained in the accounting policies; and
b) Defined benefit plan assets measured at fair value.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

ii. Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and
presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013.

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries as at March
31, 2021. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an
investee if and only if the Group has:

+  Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the

investee)
*  Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and
*  The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption and when
e Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
s in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

he\contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee \>€
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*  Rights arising from other contractual arrangements

*  The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights

*  The size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the other
voting rights holders

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the
subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date the
Group gains control until the date the group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in
similar circumstances. If a member of the Group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the consolidated
financial statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that
Group member’s financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial statements to ensure conformity with the
Group’s accounting policies.

The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same reporting date as that of
the parent company, i.€., year ended on March 31. When the end of the reporting period of the parent is different from that
of a subsidiary, the subsidiary prepares, for consolidation purposes, additional financial information as of the same date as
the financial statements of the parent to enable the parent to consolidate the financial information of the subsidiary, unless
it is impracticable to do so.

Consolidation procedure:

(a) Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those of its
subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of the assets and
liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements at the acquisition date.

(b) Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the parent’s portion of
equity of each subsidiary. Business combinations policy explains how to account for any related goodwill.

(¢) Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between entities of the Group (profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are recognised in assets,
such as inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated in full). Intragroup losses may indicate an impairment that requires
recognition in the consolidated financial statements. Ind AS 12 Income Taxes applies to temporary differences that
arise from the elimination of profits and losses resulting from intragroup transactions.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of the parent
of the group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries fo bring their accounting policies into
line with the group’s accounting policies. All intra-Group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction. If
the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

*  Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary

*  Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests

*  Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity

+  Recognises the fair value of the consideration received

+  Recognises the fair value of any investment retained

*  Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss

¢ Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in OCI to profit or loss or retained earnings,

as appropriate, as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities

L
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2.2Summary of Significant accounting policies
a. Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the
aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs
are expensed as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired, and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their acquisition date
fair values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent liabilities representing present obligation and they
are measured at their acquisition fair values irrespective of the fact that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
is not probable.

However, the following assets and liabilities acquired in a business combination are measured at the basis indicated below:

»  Deferred tax assets or liabilities, and the assets or liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are

recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Tax and Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively.

*  Potential tax effects of temporary differences and carry forwards of an acquiree that exist at the acquisition date
or arise as a result of the acquisition are accounted in accordance with Ind AS 12,

+  Liabilities or equity instruments related to share based payment arrangements of the acquiree or share — based
payments arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree
are measured in accordance with Ind AS 102 Share-based Payments at the acquisition date.

¢ Assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with Ind AS 105 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that standard.

¢ Reacquired rights are measured at a value determined on the basis of the remaining contractual term of the related
contract. Such valuation does not consider potential renewal of the reacquired right.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is re-measured at its acquisition date
fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss or OCI, as appropriate.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial instrument and within the scope of Ind AS 109 Financial
Instruments, is measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. If the contingent consideration
is not within the scope of Ind AS 109, it is measured in accordance with the appropriate Ind AS. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not re-measured at subsequent reporting dates and subsequent its settlement is accounted for
within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the
Group re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews
the procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognised at the acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an
excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in
OCI and accumulated in equity as capital reserve. However, if there is no clear evidence of bargain purchase, the entity
recognises the gain directly in equity as capital reserve, without routing the same through OCI.

initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of
fentiesting, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the

Y
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Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or
liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when
there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than its
carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss
for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods,

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the
goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the
gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is measured based on the relative values of the disposed
operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted through goodwill during the measurement period, or additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if
known, would have affected the amounts recognized at that date. These adjustments are called as measurement period
adjustments. The measurement period does not exceed one year from the acquisition date,

b. Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is treated
ag current when it is:

s Expected to be realised or consumed in normal operating cycle
¢ Held primarily for the purpose of trading
*  Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
+  Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:
+  Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
+  Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading
¢ Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
¢ Thereis no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting

period
The group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents. The group has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

¢. Foreign currencies

The Group’s consolidated financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the parent company’s functional
currency For each entity the Group detennmes the functional currency and 1tems included in the ﬁnanclal statements of
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Transactions and Balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are mitially recorded by the Group’s entities at their respective functional currency
spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for practical reasons, the Group uses average
rate if the average approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of
exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss with the
exception of the following:

Exchange differences arising on monetary items that forms part of a reporting entity’s net investment in a foreign
operation are recognised in profit or loss in the separate financial statements of the reporting entity or the individual
financial statements of the foreign operation, as appropriate. In the financial statements that include the foreign
operation and the reporting entity (e.g., consolidated financial statements when the foreign operation is a
subsidiary), such exchange differences are recognised initially in OCIL These exchange differences are reclassified
from equity to profit or loss on disposal of the net investment.

»  Exchange differences arising on monetary items that are designated as part of the hedge of the Group’s net
investment of a foreign operation. These are recognised in OCI until the net investment is disposed of, at which
time, the cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or loss.

#  Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange differences on those monetary items are also recorded in OCIL

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation
of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in
fair value of the item (i.c., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit
or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or part of it)
on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to advance consideration, the date of
the transaction is the date on which the Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability
arising from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group determines the
transaction date for each payment or receipt of advance consideration.

d. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost
comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.
Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

The cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for intended use before such date is disclosed under capital work-in-
progress.

For depreciation purposes, the group identifies and determines cost of asset significant to the total cost of the asset having
useful life that is materially different from that of the life of the principal asset and depreciates them separately based on
their specific useful lives. All other expenses on existing property, plant and equipment, including day-to-day repair and
maintenance expenditure, are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period during which such expenses are
incurred.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of
property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.
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Depreciation

The group, based on technical assessment made by experts and management estimates, depreciates cerfain items of
property, plant and equipment over estimated useful lives which are different from the useful life prescribed in Schedule
II to the Companies Act, 2013. The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair
approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used.

Depreciation is calculated on a written down value basis/straight line basis that closely reflects the expected pattern of
consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the respective assets over the estimated useful lives of the assets.

Asset Classification Estimated Useful Life (Years)
Plant and machinery 5to 15
Fumniture and fittings 10
Office equipment 5
Vehicles 8
Computer and accessories 3
Building 60
Leasehold improvements # 1-5 years

# Leasehold Improvements are depreciated over the leasehold period or useful life estimated by management whichever is
lesser.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

e. Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried
at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding
capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in
which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected
useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to
modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The
amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such
expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either individually
or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the
indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective
basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit
and loss. when the asset is derecognised. \\-&;)
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Asset Classification Useful Life (Years) Amortisation method Internally generated
or acquired

Software 3 to 10 years Amortised on a straight-line basis | Acquired
over the life

Goodwill Indefinite Assessed for impairment at the end | Acquired
of every year

Customer Relationship | 5 years Amortised on a straight-line basis | Acquired
over the life

Non-compete 8 — 10 years Amortised on a straight-line basis | Acquired
over the life

Vendor Contract 5 years Amortised on a straight-line basis | Acquired
over the life

Brand Indefinite Assessed for impairment at the end | Acquired
of every year

f. Impairment of non-financial assets

The group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication
exists, the group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or
cash-generating units (CGU) fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for
an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair
value less cost of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be
identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

The group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations which are prepared separately for
each of the group’s cash-generating units to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast
calculations are generally covering a period of five years. For longer periods, a long term growth rate is calculated and
applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the
most recent budgets/forecasts, the group extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth
rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-
term average growth rate for the services, industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates, or for the market
in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses including impairment on inventories, are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. After
impairment, depreciation / amortization is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful
life.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognized impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the group estimates the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change
in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. The
reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation / amortization, had no impairment loss been recognized for
the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

g. Revenue from confracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer
at ap—amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
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that it is the principal in all of its revenue arrangements since it is the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements as it
has pricing latitude and is also exposed to credit risks.

Goods and Service Tax (GST) is not received by the Company on its own account. Rather, it is the tax collected on value
added on the services and commodity by the seller on behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.

Revenues in excess of invoicing are classified as contract assets (referred to as unbilled revenue) while invoicing in excess
of revenues are classified as contract liabilities (referred to as income received in advance).
Revenue is adjusted for expected price concessions based on the management estimates.

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised.

Income from facility management services
Revenues from facility management service contracts are recognized pro-rata over the period of the contract as and when
services are rendered and are net of discounts.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the unconditional right to receive the payment is established.

Interest income
Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the applicable
interest rate. Interest income is included under the head “Financial income” in the statement of profit and loss.

Contract balances

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the group
performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due,
a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.

Contract Assets (Unbilled revenue) represents revenue in excess of billing,

Trade receivables
A receivable represents the group’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time
is required before payment of the consideration is due).

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the group
transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is
due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the group performs under the contract.

h. Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present
location and condition are accounted for as follows:
¢ Traded goods: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

i. Financial Instruments
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Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular
way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method (EIR) is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial instrument and of allocating
interest income or expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts future cash
receipts or payments through the expected life of the financial instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

Debt instruments at amortised cost

Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
e Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments at amortised cost
A “debt instrument” is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows,
and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Group. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included
in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category
generally applies to trade and other receivables. For more information on receivables, refer to Note 10% (Trade
Receivables).

Debt instrument at FVTOCI
A *debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial
assets, and
b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value.
Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Group recognizes interest
income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On derecognition of the asset,
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to P&L. Interest eamed whilst holding
FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method. The Group does not have any debt instrument
as at FVTOCI.

Debt instrument at FVTPL
FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization
as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL. \‘1
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In addition, the Group may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria,
as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition
inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). The Group has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL,

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the P&L.
The Group does not have any debt instrument at FVTPL.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading
and “contingent consideration classified as liability” recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind
AS103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, entities in the Group has made an irrevocable
election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. Such election is made on an
instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding
dividends, are recognized in the OCL, There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to P&L, even on sale of investment.
However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it
transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have
to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is recognised in the Statement of profit and loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The group applies expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised
cost.

The group follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. The application
of simplified approach does not require the group to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. Provision for ECL is recognised
for financial assets measured at amortised cost and fair value through other comprehensive income.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as expenses in the statement of
profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L.

Reclassification of financial assets

The Group determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no
reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which
are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets.
Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. A change in the business model occurs when the Group either
begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Group reclassifies financial assets, it applies
the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting

period following the change in business model. \}6
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Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of financial liabilities at amortized cost, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, borrowings including bank overdrafts, redemption
liability and financial guarantee contracts.

Subsequent measurement

All financial liabilities except derivatives are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method,

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to
the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Equity investment in Subsidiaries

Investment in subsidiaries are carried at cost in the separate financial statements as permitted under Ind-AS 27.

j- Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the
right to use the underlying assets.

i. Right-of-use assets
The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
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Asset Classification Estimated Useful Life
(Years)

Building 1-5

Vehicles 1-3

Furniture and fittings 1-2

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section (d) Impairment of non-
financial assets.

ii. Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including insubstance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made.
In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a
change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine
such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

The Group’s lease liabilities are included in Interest-bearing loans and borrowings (see Note 41).

iii.  Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of Buildings and Machinery and
Equipment (i.c., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain
a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that
are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as
expense on a straight-line basis over the leage term.

Group as a lessor

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the
period in which they are earned.

k. Retirement and other employee benefits

a, Compensated absences

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months
after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees”

to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are
liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet. \>@
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Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee benefit.
The group measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the
unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

The group treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as non-current employee benefit
for measurement purposes. Such non-current compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using
the projected unit credit method at the year-end. Remeasurement gains / losses are immediately taken to the statement of
profit and loss and are not deferred.

b. Post-employment obligations
The group operates the following post-employment schemes:
i. Gratuity obligations

Gratuity liability under the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 is a defined benefit obligation. The Plan provides payment to
vested employees at retirement, death or termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee’s
salary and the tenure of employment. The group provides the gratuity benefit through annual contribution to a fund
managed by the Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC). Under this scheme the settlement obligation remains with the
group although the LIC administers the scheme and determines the contribution premium required to be paid by the group.
The cost of providing benefits under this plan is determined on the basis of actuarial valuation at each year-end using the
projected unit credit method.

In addition to the above, the group recognises its liability in respect of gratuity for employees (where customer reimburses
gratuity) and its right of reimbursement as an asset. Employee benefits expense in respect of gratuity to employees and
reimbursement right is presented in accordance with Ind AS — 19,

Remeasurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the
net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to
retained eamings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement is not reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods.

Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of the date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and the date
that the group recognises related restructuring costs.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The group recognises the
following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss:

- Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs and

- Net interest expense or income.

ii. Retirement benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The group has no obligation, other than
the contribution payable to the provident fund. The group recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as
an expenditure, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received
before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a
liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for
services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will
lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

I. Taxes

Current income tax
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Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and deferred tax charge or credit during the year. Current income tax
assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax
rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in
the countries where the group operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in
OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
all taxable temporary differences, except:

* When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss.

* In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint
ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.

Deferred tax asset is recognised for the camry forward of unused tax losses and unused tax credits to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be
utilised.

Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax. The Group
recognizes MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that the group will pay
normal income tax during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In
the year in which the group recognizes MAT credit as a deferred tax asset. The group reviews the “MAT credit entitlement”
asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent that it is no longer probable that it will pay normal tax
during the specified period.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and written off to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either
in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
insterrrent tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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The Group offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either to
settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

m. Government grants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic
basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates
to an asset, it is recognised as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset.

When the group receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at fair value amounts and
released to profit or loss over the expected useful life in a pattern of consumption of the benefit of the underlying asset i.e.
by equal annual instalments. When loans or similar assistance are provided by governments or related institutions, with an
interest rate below the current applicable market rate, the effect of this favourable interest is regarded as a government
grant. The loan or assistance is initially recognised and measured at fair value and the government grant is measured as the
difference between the initial carrying value of the loan and the proceeds received. The loan is subsequently measured as
per the accounting policy applicable to financial liabilities.

The Group has opted for the Pradhan Mantri Rojgar Protsahan Yojana (PMRPY) scheme. The PMRPY Scheme aims to
incentivise employers for employment generation by the Government paying the full employers' EPS contribution of 12%,
for the new employees, for the first three years of their employment and is proposed to be made applicable for unemployed
persons that are semi-skilled and unskilled.

n. Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the group are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a
debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of
the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less
cumulative amortisation.

o. Fair value measurement
The Group measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

+ In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

* In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their best economic interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
g the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as a whole:

* Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

* Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable

» Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Involvement of external valuers is decided upon annually by the Group. At each reporting date, the Group analyses the
movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the accounting
policies. For this analysis, the Group verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information
in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents. Other fair value related disclosures are given in
the relevant notes.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the
nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above (Refer
Note 50 Fair value hierarchy).

p. Segment reporting

The Management monitors the operating results of its business as a single primary segment “facility management service”
for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. The business of the Group falls
under a single primary segment i.e. 'facility management service' for the purpose of Ind AS 108,

q. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity holder of parent company
(after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted eamings per share, the net profit or loss before OCI for the period attributable to
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects
of all dilutive potential equity shares.

r. Dividend

The Company recognises a liability to pay dividend to equity holders of the patent when the distribution is authorised, and
the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorised
when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

s. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable

estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating
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The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle present obligation at the
end of reporting period, taking into account the risk and uncertainty surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of these
cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material). When some or all of the economic benefits required
to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually
certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of receivable can be measured reliably.

Onerous Contract

If the Group has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation under the contract is recognised and measured as a
provision. However, before a separate provision for an onerous contract is established, the Group recognises any
impairment loss that has occurred on assets dedicated to that contract.

An onerous contract is a contract under which the unavoidable costs (i.e., the costs that the Group cannot avoid because it
has the contract) of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under
it. The unavoidable costs under a contract reflect the least net cost of exiting from the contract, which is the lower of the
cost of fulfilling it and any compensation or penalties arising from failure to fulfil it. The cost of fulfilling a contract
comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract (i.e., both incremental costs and an allocation of costs directly related
to contract activities).

t. Contingent liabilities & Contingent Assets

Contingent liability is disclosed for,

(i) Possible obligation which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the group or

(ii) Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made. Contingent assets are not
recognised in the financial statements.

Contingent assets are disclosed in the Financial Statements by way of notes to accounts when an inflow of economic
benefits is probable.

u. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined
above. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in financial liabilities in the balance sheet.

v. Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent
regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

w. Share-based payments
Employees (including senior executives) of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby
employees render services as consideration for equity instruments (equity-settled transactions).

Equity-settled transactions
The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using an appropriate

valuation model. Further details are given in Note 42.
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That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in share-based payment (SBP) reserves in equity, over the
period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which
the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
The expense or credit in the statement of profit and loss for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period and is recognised in employee benefits expense.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant date fair value of
awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of the number of
equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair value.
Any other conditions attached to an award, but without an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting
conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an
award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or service conditions
have not been met. Where awards include a market or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vested
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognised is the grant date fair value of
the unmodified award, provided the original vesting terms of the award are met. An additional expense, measured as at the
date of modification, is recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based payment
transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee. Where an award is cancelled by the entity or by the counterparty,
any remaining element of the fair value of the award is expensed immediately through profit or loss.

x. Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
New and amended standards
(i) Amendments to Ind AS 116: Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions.

The amendments provide relief to lessees from applying Ind AS 116 guidance on lease modification accounting for rent
concessions arising as a direct consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic. As a practical expedient, a lessee may elect not to
assess whether a Covid-19 related rent concession from a lessor is a lease modification. A lessee that makes this election
accounts for any change in lease payments resulting from the Covid-19 related rent concession the same way it would
account for the change under Ind AS 116, if the change were not a lease modification.

The amendments are applicable for annual reporting periods beginning on or after the 1 April 2020. In case, a lessee has
not yet approved the financial statements for issue before the issuance of this amendment, then the same may be applied
for annual reporting periods beginning on or after the 1 April 2019. This amendment had no impact on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

(ii) Amendments to Ind AS 103 Business Combinations

The amendment to Ind AS 103 Business Combinations clarifies that to be considered a business, an integrated set of
activities and assets must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive process that, together, significantly
contribute to the ability to create output. Furthermore, it clarifies that a business can exist without including all of the
inputs and processes needed to create outputs.

These amendments are applicable to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of

the first annual reporting period beginning on or after the 1 April 2020 and to asset acquisitions that occur on or after the

beginning of that period This amendment had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group but may
P
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(iii) Amendments to Ind AS 1 and Ind AS 8: Definition of Material

The amendments provide a new definition of material that states, “information is material if omitting, misstating or
obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial
statements make on the basis of those financial statements, which provide financial information about a specific reporting
entity.” The amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of information, either
individually or in combination with other information, in the context of the financial statements. A misstatement of
information is material if it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions made by the primary users. These
amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of, nor is there expected to be any future impact to
the Group.

These amendments are applicable prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after the 1 April 2020. The
amendments to the definition of material are not expected to have a significant impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

y¥. Recent Pronouncements

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs through a notification dated 24 March 2021 amended Schedule III to the Companies
Act, 2013. These amendments are applicable from 1 April 2021 and enhances the disclosures required to be made by the
Company in its financial statements. The Company is evaluating the effect of these amendments on its financial

statements.
\>‘t
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3

3A

Property, Plant and Equipment (Restated)
Particulars Property, Plant and Equipment
Furniture
Fusibiuiis Plant and and (':il'ﬂce Vehicles Cnmpuler_and Building Leasehold Total
machinery i equipments accessories improvements
ixtures
Gross earrying value
At 1 April 2019 1,835.24 187.95 163.03 17101 309.69 17757 67.93] 2,919.02
Additions 98743 123.18 109.80 61.93 282.76 2327 64.75] 1.653.12
Transfer to RolJ {(Refer Note a) - - i (13.60) - . - (13.60°
Disposals (8384 (1587 (8.29) (23.57) (7.73) - -l (139.32
At 31 March 2020 (Restated) 273883] 2052s] 265.14 201.77 584.70 200.84 132.68| 4.419.22
Additions 24584 15.21 39.41 - 6l.54 9.96 n .98]
Disposals (40.57)]  (53.97) (47.62)] (10.60) {22.16) - (7.73)] (182.65
At 31 Mareh 2021 2044.10) 256.50] 256.93 191.17| 624.08 200.84 134.89| 4,608.53
Depreciation
At 1 April 2019 9163?' 52.12 75.37 69.74 172.77 2516 47.02 IJE,‘
Charge for the year 83L.60 57.32 62.64 34.08 152.59 37.74 14.68) 1,190.65
Transfer to Roll (Refer Note a) - - -] (0.91) = - - (0.91)]
Disposals (76.63)] (1587) {8.29) (16.15) (7.75)] - - (124.69)
At 31 March 2020 1.671.94 93.57 129.72 86.96]  317.61 62.90] 61.70{ 2.424.20]
Charge for the year 651.34 13.81 60.5% 3534 137.44] 13.30 3224]  969.06
Disposals (34600  (37.67) (26.63)! (10.60) (19.04) - (7.73)] (136.29)
At 31 March 2021 1.188.68 94.71 163.66 111.50 436.01 76.20 86.20 | 3,256.97 |
MNet Block
At 31 March 2020 {Restated) 1,066.89] 201.69 135,42 115.01 267.09 131—'.94' 70.98| 1,995.02
At 31 March 2021 655,42 161.79 93.27 79.67 188.07] 124.64 48.69] 1,351.56|
Note:
a. Certain finance lease vehicles have been reclassified from Property, Plant and Equipments to Right-of-use assets in line with Ind AS 116,
b) Cash credit and working capital loan are secured by first pari-passu charge on certain moveable assets. (Refer Note 20)
Intangible assets & Goodwill on consolidation (Restated)
Intangibles Assets (Refer note below)
Particulars Computer] Customer Vendor
software | relationship Noa Compiets Contract Brang o
Gross carrying value
At 1 April 2019 90.69 - - - - 90.69
Additions 26946 365.00 21500 617.00 155.00 1.621.46
Disposals (5.94) . - - - {5.04)
At 31 March 2020 354.21 365.00 215.00 617.00 155.00 1,706.21
Additions 36.59 3659
Disposals - i
At 31 March 2021 390.80 365.00 215.00 617.00 155.00 1,742.80
Amortization
At 1 April 2019 63.64 - - - - 63.64
Charge for the year 59.10 4736 16,28 70.66 - 193.40
Impainment 5.39 - - - 539
Other adjustments {0.39) - - - {0.39)
At 31 March 2020 127.74 47.36 16.28 70.66 - 262.04
Charge for the year 60.18 7291 22.66 123.40 27915
At 31 March 2021 187.92 12027 I8 194.06 = 54119
Net Block
At 31 March 2020 22047 317.64 198.72 546.34 155.00 144417
At 31 March 2021 202.88 244.73 176.06 422.94 155.00 1.201.61
Particulars March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Opening Balance of Impaimment 3116 2577
Charge during the year - 5.39
Closing balance of Impairment 3116 JLI6

Goodwill on Consolidation (Restated)

Pacticulais Goodwill on
Consolidation
At 1 April 2019 1,575.59
Additions 2.994.68
At 31 March 2020 4.570.27
Additions -
At 31 March 2021 4,570.27

The Geodwill and intangible asset with indefinite life is recognised at the time of acquisition of the Subsidiarics {Avon Logistics & Solutions Private Limited, Fusion
Foods and Catering Private Limited, Matrix Business Services India Private Limited, Global Flight Handling Services Private Limited and Washroom Hygiene

Concepts Private Limited) by the Group.

The recoverable amount of the Investments has been determined based on Value in Use calculation using cash flow projections from financial budgets approved by the
respective Board/ Senior management covering a five year period. The cash flow projections have been updated to reflect the impact of COVID-19. The discount rate
applied to cash flow projections for lmpairment testing during the current year is 12.9% and cash tlow beyond the five years are extrapolated using a growth rate of

6 that is the same as the long term average growth rate for the industry in which e Group operates. It was concluded that the fair value less costs of disposal did
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3A  Goodwill on consolidation & Intangible assets (continued)

On April 25, 2019, the Group acquired 73% equity ownership in Matrix Business Services India Private Limited {"Matrix™) by investing a total of  3.915.01 lakhs as
equity share capital. Matrix is primarily engaged in the business of providing assurance services, claims processing, including employee background verifications
checks and product and process audits inter alia of warehouses, depots, distributors and distribution centres, retail points and outlets and franchisees. Investment
recorded during the year includes Z 965.16 lakhs on account of obligation to purchase the remaining equity shares in the future, recognised pursuant to Shareholder’s
Agreement berween the Group and the promoters of Matrix.

On September 5, 2019, the Group has acquired 76% equity ownership in Washroom Hygiene Concepts Private Limited ("WHC") by investing a total of ¥ 1,520.00
lakhs as equity share capital. WHC is primarily engaged in the business of providing washroom sanitizing services and hygiene solutions, primarily fermale hygiene
solutions, viz sanitary napkin vending & disposal and supply of third party sanitary products. Investment recorded during the year includes % 360.63 lakhs on account
of obligation to purchase the remaining equity shares in the future, recognised pursuant to Shareholder’s Agrecment between the Company and the promoters of WHC.

Censequent to the future purchases, the Group will hold 100% of the equity shares of Matrix and WHC, The Group has elected not to recognise a non-controlling
interest in Matrix and WHC as the unacquired shares from the promoters of Matrix and WHC are recognised as financial liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and both Matrix and WHC are considered to be 100% owned by the Group for the purpose of consolidation.

Intangible asscts out of acquisition

Customer relationship

Customer contracts and related Customer relationships include the relationships that Matrix and WHC have established with customers that are tied to them through a
contract, as well as the potential extension of such contracts/additional relationships that would arise as a result of these contracts, and therefore, meet both the
contractual/legal criteria and the separability criterion for recognition of an Intangible Asset under Ind AS 38 Intangible Assets’,

The income approach has been considered for arriving at the value of the intangible asset as defined in "Ind AS 113 Fair Valuz Measurement”. The Company has
ascertained ascertained the useful life to be 5 years.

Non Compete

Non compete is based on a contractual agreement which protects the value of the purchased assets from Matrix and WHC (bath tangible and intangible) by restricting
the respective promoters' competitive conduct post the respective investment dates and accordingly, meet both the contractual/legal criteria and scparability criterion
for recognition of an Intangible Asset under 'Ind AS 38 Intangible Assets’,

As per the investment agresments for Matrix and WHC, the promoters have agreed to non-competence for a period of 7 years from the expiry of Contract of service or
the promoters ceasing to hold any securities of Matrix and WHC (i.e. after June 30, 2021 and June 30, 2022 respectively). Thus effectively 8 - 10 years from the date
of acquisition.

The income approach has been considered for arriving at the value of the intangible assct as defined in "Ind AS 113 Fair Yalue Measurcment”,

Vendor contract

Vendor Contract is an agreement where the vendor has agreed to supply agreed products for a specified period of time and within a specific geographic area
exclusively to WHC and meet both the contractual/legal criteria and the separability criterion for recognition of an Intangible Asset under 'Ind AS 32 Intangible
Assets’,

The income approach has been considered for amriving at the value of the intangible asset as defined in "Ind AS 113 Fair Valuc Measurement®, The Company has
ascertained ascertained the useful life to be 5 years.

Brand
WHC uses the brand "Washroom Hygienz Concepts' for its traditional as well as new businesses. The Group will continue to use the similar strategy in future for all
its new generation businesses, The brand serves to create iations and ions among products made by WHC, This meets the legal criterion and the

separability criterion for recopmition of an Intangible Asset under 'Ind AS 38 Intangible Assets’.

The income approach has been considered for arriving at the value of the intangible asset as defined in "Ind AS 113 Fair Value Measurement”, The intangible asset is
considered having an indefinite useful life and will be assessed for impainnent every year.
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: Asat As al
. .
RUS, vl March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
4 Investmenis
Investments at Cost
9,999 {March F1, 2020 - 9.999) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up in Updater Services (LUDS) 100 100
Foundation (Refer note 47)
Tuvestments at Fair Value throngh Profit & Loss
LE&T Liguad Fund Direet Plan - Growth - Nil wmits (March 2020 - 2074 9 Unis) . 533
L&T Low Duration Fund Direet Plan - Growth - 816,851 04 unuts (March 2020 - Nal units) 17699 =
Baroda Short Term Bond Fund A/C - 555 288 30 units (March 2020- 704 489 949 units) 226:41 To.41
L&T Ulia short fund direct - Dividend reinvesiment - Nil units (March 2020 - 2,54,761 711} - 26,66
404.40 154.40
== e
Non Current 1.00 100
Current 403.40 153.40
Agpregate value of investments 404.40 154.40
5 Loans (Al Amortised Cost) Asat Az at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
(Considered good, Unsecured unless stated otherwise)
Rental Deposit ®
- considered good 418.57 42499
- credit impaired 3036 3036
44893 455 17
Less: Impairment for doubiful deposits {3030} {30.36)
418.57 424.91
Security Deposits
- considered good 15064 |62 §2
150,64 162.52
509.21 587.73%
* - Renal deposit ineludes amounts held by related panies of T 22874 lakhs (Mareh 31, 2020 - 2 220 45 lakhs) Refer Note 47
6 Other non corrent financinl assels (Al Amortised Cast) Asat As at
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
(Considered good, Unsecured unless stated atherwise)
Retennion Deposis
= cunsidered pood 277 48 10437
= eredil ampaired F 489
LRI 10926
= Impairment for doubtful Jeposits {500} {4 8y
, 277.4% 104.37
Rein bursement sight of giatuity (Refer Note 403 * 1,142 84 1. 1R95T
Other advances = %
Balances with Banks #
- inn long tem deposus wnder len with matunty more than 12 manths RIERT 3277
Other deposits - 0.08
1.924.30 1,606.79
o

* The Company has recognised gratwity habiliy and reimbursement right i respect of eruployees where there is contractual fght w regerve rembursement

From customers, pursiant o pargaph |16 of Ind AS - 19, (Refer Note 40)

# Fised deposits are under hen with various banks with respect to guaraniees issued to third partics.
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7 Other non current assets

Balence with government authoritics

- considered good (Refer Note 45)

- eredit impatrod

Less: Provision for doubtful advances

Capital Advance
- considered pood
- eredit impaired

Less: Provision for doubtful advances

Prepaid Expenses

& Inventories

Row materials
Stock-in-trade
Fimshed Goods
Consumables

% Noo-Cuwrrent Tax Assets (Net)

Advance mcome tax

Less Provision for mcome tases

10 Trade Receivables (AL Amortised Cost)

Teade receiviables

Trade receivable from related parties {Nate 47)

Security details
Considered good , Seeured

Considered good , Uinsecured

Trade Recevables - credin impared

lmpairment allowance
Uinsecured, considered pood

Trade Recewables - eredit impaired

‘Total Tratde receivables

Asal As at
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020

56.12 -
- 44 34
56,12 44.34
- (44.34)
56.12 -
27.66 441
44.30 44 30
71.96 4871
(44.30) (44 30)
27.66 441
442 580
58.20 1027
Asat As at
March 31,2021  Mareh 31, 20240
2627 i3.00
36315 47039
Bl 63 13053
N6 28.12
S01.41 663,03
Asat As at
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
13,094.26 1241400
(8,198 95) (7.442.18)
4.805.31 4.971.82
Asat As at
March 31,2021 March 31. 2020
2081021 20,234 90
300 619

20,813.30 29.231.09

2081330 29231 08

1.051.47 GG 55
21,8064.77 19.897.63
(1.05] 47} (bbb 55)
(1LO51.47) {666,55)
20.813.30 10.231.08

No trade or other receivables are due fiom Direciors or other officers of the Group either severally or jointly with any other person. Trade receivables are
non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of ) to 90 days based on the type of the customer. For balances, terms and conditions relating to related

partios, refer Note 47
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A

Cuish and cash equivalenis

{1} Balances with banks:

- O current accounts

= deposits with original maty
- earmarked for DDU-GRY Project *
Cash in land

For the purpose of statement of cashlows, cash and cash equivalents comprase the following:

On current pceounts

Deposits

Cash on hand

Total Cash and cash equivalents

(i) Bank Balances other than cash and cash equivalenis as above
- Deposits with Original Materity of less than 3 months under lien®*

- in long term deposits under lien with maturity more than 3 months but less than 12 months
Total Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents

* During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company had entered into an M

Asat
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

1y of less than three months

130282 1,706.11
1027 50 -
225,57 13.51
298 2383
4.558.87 174345
330282 1.706.11
1.253.07 13,51
298 23 33
4,558.87 174345
Asat As at
March 31,2021  March 31, 2020
632.00 2
1.230 63 72279
1,862.63 722.79

(MO with Tamil Madu State Rural Lively

Mission on August 26, whereby for a period of 3 years in relation 1o a particular project (DDU GKY), Company has 1o train 2,002 workers under the
euidelines of the MoRD, Govemnment of India. Pursuant to the same, Company has received an advance of Rs. 1,592 61 lakhs from (March 31, 2018 - Rs
674.06 and March 31, 2021 - Rs 918 55) the CEO, Tami] Nadu State Rural Lively Mission. The money can be utilised only for the training and related

expenses approved as per the MOU agreement

** Fixed deposits given as security (Bank Balances other than cash and cash equivalents)
Fuxed deposits 1s under lien with various banks in respect of prarmntees issued to third parties

Loans (At Amortised Cost)

{Considered good, Unsecured unless stated otherwise)

Security deposits
- considered pood
= credit impaired

Less: Provision for deultful depasits

Rental Deposit
- considered good

Loans to related party
- considered good

- credit impaired

Less: Provision for doubtful deposits
Loans to refated party

Loans to employees
- considered good
=eredit mpaired

Less: Provision for doubiful loans

Total

Other curvent financial assets (At Amortised Cost)

{Congidercd good, Unsecured unless stated otherwise)
Reimbursement right of uratuity {Refer Mote 40) *

- considered good
- credit impaired

Less: Provision for doubtful reimbursement nght of gratnty

Interest acerued
Contract Assets- Unbilled revenue #
Total

Asat
March 31,2021

Agat
March 31, 2020

304,11 413.03
7141 7072
43552 48375
{71.41) (70.72)
364.11 413,03
161,78 59.92
16175 §9.92
099 -

001
1o %
(001 =
0.99 £
4448 1749
918 918
53.66 26.67
(9.18) {9.18)
44 4% 17.49
57134 490,46
Asat As at

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

128652 121541
5083 =
1,346.35 1,215.41
(39.33) -
1,286.52 121541

5602 2238
672783 5.403.68
8,070.39 664147

® - The Group has recognised watuity liability and reimbursement right in respect of employees where there is contractual night 10 receive reimbursement

from costomers, pursuant to paragraph | 16 of Ind AS - 19 (Refer Note 40)
# - Classified as financial asset as right to consideration 18 uncondibonal upon passage of time
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14

Other current assels Asat As ut
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
Prepaid expenses * o1 120 T71.98
Balance with government authorities
-considered good 27900 34054
= credit impaired 41.57 41,57
320.66 39L.11
Less: Provision for doubtful sdvances {4157} (41.57)
279.09 34954
Advances for supply of goods
-considered good £6.9] 10056
- eredit impaired 194 47 216,94
28138 3750
Less; Proviston for doubtful advances for supply of goods (194.47) (216 94)
86.91 100,56
Advances to employees
- considered good 5471 7251
- credit impaired 43.78 4378
9855 11629
Less Provision for doubiful advances {43.78) (43.78)
5477 .51
Comtract Asset- Unbilled revenue # 1,990 98 1,000 26
Other Advances - 1.67
Total 3,022.95 3.205.52

* - Includes cost of uniform and shoes provided to service stafl written offover a penod of 12 months from the date of purchase - INK 331 54 lakhs (March
31, 2020 - INR 33930 lakhs).

# - Classified as non-financial asset as the contractual unconditional right wderation is dependent on pletion of | obligations. Includes
Rs. 59771 lakhs related to government projects for Skills and Development {(DDUGKY) for which milestones have not been achieved due to COVID-19
outbreak, but State povernment authorities have extended the trmelines

Deferved tax assel (Net} Asat
s March 31, 2020
March 31, 2021 (Restated)
Praperty, plant & equipment and [ntangible asscls 58523 506.93
On Account of Ind AS 1 16 adoption {4.77) -
Unabsorbed Carry forward Losses 2153 -
Pravasion for Bonus 3944 &
Provision for Leave 786 -
Provision for doubtful debts 91107 344,96
Provision for doubtful advances 1o 140,66
Provision for gratuity 82408 603,20
Provision for compensated absences 28183 253.8¢
Disallowances on aecount of TDS 1454 -
Pravision for litigation 1419 7.06
Expenses allowable on payment basis HIT 48 801.00
Deferred tax assel (Net) 364321 2.717.62
Openng Balance {Deferred Tax Assets) (Refer Note 15) 271762 2,562 18
Opering Balance (Deferred Tax Liabilities) { Refer Note 23) (31672 -
Total Opening Balance {Net) 2,406,940 2,562,158
Tax Expense during the vear recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 100232 6644
Tax {Income) ! Expense during the vear recognised in OC1 (21.63) 1541
Dieferred Tax Liabiliy on Tnungible assets arsing out of sequisition - (340.29)
‘Tax on acquisition of subsidianes . 4069
thers . 1247
Closing Balance {Net) 338759 240690
Clasing Balance (Deferred Tax Asset) {Refer Note 15) 3643.21 2,717.62

Closing Balance (Deferred Tax Liabilitites {Refer Note 13) (255.61) (310.72)
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16 Share capital

+ Asat Asat
- March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Authorised
530,00 (March 31, 2020: 330.00) equity shares of Rs 10 each 5,300.00 5,300.00
Issued, subscribed and paid up
528,17 (March 31, 2020: 528.17) equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid up 528175 528175
a) Reconciliation ofshares outstanding at the beginning and at the end ol the reporting
Particulars As af March 31, 2021 Asat March 31, 2020

Mo, of shares Amount No. of shares Amaunt

Equity shares
At the beginning of the year 52817 5281.75 528.17 518175
Add: Shares issued during the year % s = o
Outstanding at the end of the year E38.17 5.281.75 528.17 528175

b) Terms / rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each helder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share, The Company declares dividend in Indian
Rupees, The final dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject 1o the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Mesting
In the event of liquidation of the Company, equity share holders will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, afler distribution of all preferential amounts, The distribution will be

in propartion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

During the financizl year 2016-17, the Company has issued equity shares (o India Business Excellence Fund - 1l and India Business Excellence Fund — IIA ("Investors™). The Investors have
been provided with certain exit rights afier a predetermined period (wviz IPO / Exit Trade Sale / Strategic Sale Right as defined in the share purchase agreement) by the Company and other

Thareholdere
¢) Aggregate number of bonus shares issued, shares issued for consideration other than cash and shares bought back during the period of five years immediately
preeceding the reporting date:
Pirtaaii Asat March| Asat March | Asat March | Asat Mareh | Asat March
Arienine 31,2021 31,2020 31, 2019 31, 2018 31,2017
Equity shares allotted as fully paid bonus shares by capitalization of ities p - - 395.21
|Egui§g shares bought back by the company - - - - 20.75
d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company
Asat Asat
Name of shareholder T, :hrdl My 2ht i :[:nh M, 220
0. of shares| 0. ol shares
held Yo of holding held “a of holding
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid
T Raghunandana 163.78 3L.01%| 162.38 30.74%
T Shanthi 162.38 30.74%) 162.38 30.74%)
Tangi Facility Solutions Pvt Ltd 11173 21.16%) 113.13 21,42%)
India Business Excellence Fund — I1 28.R9 5.479%) 2880 5.47%)
India Busincss Excellence Fund — ITA 61.39 11.62% 61.39 11.62%
|Tmal 528,17 100.00% 528.17 100.00%

As per records of the company. including its register of sharcholders! members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest. the above sharsholding represents

both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

Shares reserved for issuc under options

For details of shares reserved for issue under the Share based payment plan of the company, please refer note 42,
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i ; As at 5 3t
Note Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
(Restated)
17 Other equity
Retained earnings 17,335.12 13.268.88
Capital redemption reserve 207.50 207.50
General Reserve 265.97 172.69
Employee stock option reserve (Refer Note 42) 340.52 325.64
Securities premium 5,5904.28 5,594.28
Total other equity 23,743.39 19,569.00

Retained Earnings

At 1 April 2019

Add: Profit for the year

Less: Other Comprehensive Loss

Less Effect of adoption of Ind AS 116 Leascs
Less: Transler to General Reserve

At 31 March 2020

Add: Profit for the year
Add: Other Comprehensive Gain
Less: Transfer to General Reserve

At 31 March 2021

Capital Redemption Reserve

At 1 April 2019
Changes during the period

© At 31 March 2020

Changes during the period

At 31 March 2021

General Reserve

At T April 2019
Add: Transfer from Retained earnings

At 31 March 2020

Add: Transfer from Retained earnings

At 31 March 2021

Employee stock option reserve

At 1 April 2019
Add: Employce stock options provided

At 31 March 2020

Add: Employee stock options provided

At 31 March 2021

Securitics Premium

At 1 April 2019
Changes during the period

At 31 March 2020

Changes during the period

At 31 March 2021

Amount in Lakhs

9,507.54
4,134.46
(136.74)
(214.12)
(22.26)
13,268.88
4,086.25
73.27
(93.28)
17,335.13

Amount in Lakhs

207.50

207.50

Amount in Lakhs

150.43
22,26
172.69
93.28
265.97

Amount in Lakhs

325.64
325.64

14.88
340.52

Amount in Lakhs

5,594.28

5,594.28

5,594.28
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. As at As at
R RSN March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
17A  Non Controlling Interest 692.67 454,33
Total 24,436.06 20,023.33

Nature and purpose of other reserves

(i) Securities premium

Securitics premium is used (o record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013.

(ii) Capital redemption reserve

The Company has recognised Capital Redemption Reserve on buy-back of equity shares from its retained carnings. The amount in Capital
Redemption Reserve is equal to nominal amount of the equity shares bought back. The Company can utilize the same for the purpose of
issue of fully paid-up bonus shares to its members.

(iii) General reserve

Under the erstwhile Companies Act 1956, general reserve was created through an annual transfer of net income at a specified percentage
in accordance with applicable regulations. The purpose of these transfers was to ensure that if a dividend distribution in a given year is
more than 10% of the paid-up capital of the Company for that year, then the total dividend distribution is less than the total distributable
results for that year. Consequent to introduction of Companies Act 2013, the requirement to mandatorily transfer a specified percentage of
the net profit to general reserve has been withdrawn. However, the amount previously transferred to the general reserve can be utilised
only in accordance with the specific requirements of Companies Act, 2013,

(iv) Empioyee stock option reserve
Under Ind AS 102, fair value of the options granted is (o be expensed out over the life of the vesting period as employee compensation
costs reflecting period of receipt of service,

v} Retained Earnings

The amount that can be distributed by the Company as dividends to ils equity sharcholders is delermined based on the financial
statements of the Company and also considering the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013. Thus, the amounts reported above may
not be distributable in entirety.

As at As at

Note Particulars

March 31,2021 March 31, 2020

18 Borrowings (Nen-current)

Term loans from banks - 0.91
Total Non-current borrowings - 0.91

The Vehicle loans of a subsidiary were secured by the hypothecation of respective vehicles and repayable over a period not exceeding five
years carrying interest rate of 10.24% (March 31, 2021 - Nil and March 31, 2020 - INR 0.91 lakhs)

Note Particulars

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

19 Long term provisions

Provision for Gratuity (Refer Note 40(A)) 2,253.53 2,045.26
Provision for gratuity - reimbursement employees (Refer Note 40(13)) 1,142.84 1,189.57
Total long term provisions 3,396.37 3,234.83
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Note Particulars

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

20 Current borrowings (At Amortised Cost)

Cash credit from banks (sccured)* 447.79 §,982.02
Working capital loan (secured)** 700.00 -

Loan from others # 13.22 13.22
Total Current borrowings 1,161.01 8,995.23

Updater Services Private Limited

* The Company has taken cash credit having interest rate ranging from 6.6% to 10.50% p.a. These facilities are repayable on demand and
are sccurcd primarily by way of pari passu first charge on the entire current asseis of the Company on both present and future and
collateral by way of pari passu first charge on the entire movable assets of the Company both present and future of the Company and
personal guarantee of the Managing Director.

** The Company has taken working capital loan from banks having interest rate ranging from 4.9% to 8.50% p.a. These facilities are
repayable within 28 - 87 days and are secured primarily by way of pari passu first charge on the entire current assets of the Company on
both present and future and collateral by way of pari passu first charge on the entire movable assets of the Company and personal
puarantee of the Managing Director,

Global Flight Handling Services Private Limited
# The subsidiary has obtained an interest free loan from the director repayable on demand.

21 Trade payables (At Amortised Cost) As at As at
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
Dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 43) 388.78 769.77
Dues to Related Party (refer note 47) - 69.59
Dues to other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 2,796 .47 2,853 68
Total dues outstanding to micro enterprises and small enterprises 2,796.47 2,923.27
Total trade payables 3,185.25 3,693.04
Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30 to 60 day term. For terms and conditions relating to related parties,
refer Note 47,
22 Other current financial liabilities (At Amortised Cost) As at As at

March 31,2021 Mareh 31, 2020

Capital creditors * 47.08 47.21
Employee benefits payable 7,503.53 7.150.97
Security Deposit 9.00 9.00
Bonus payable 3,325.00 2,935.92
Director fees payable (Refer note 47) - 10.80
Liability payable to promolers of acquired subsidiary # (@ 842.10 875.02
Other payables 16.97 1685
Total other financial liabilities 11,743.68 11,045.77

* Includes as amount of Rs 2.11 lakhs (March 31, 2020 Rs 3.10 lakhs) payablc to Micro cnterprises and small enterprises.

# During the previous year, the Company has acquired 75% stake in Matrix Business Services India Private Limited at an agreed price of
INR 3,915.01 lakhs from the promoters of Matrix and 76% stake in Washroom Hygiene Solutions Private Limiled at an agreed price of
INR 1,520.00 lakhs. As per the Shareholder's Agreement between Company, these two companies and its erstwhile promoters, the
Company has an obligation to purchase the remaining shares held by the promoters of such companics bascd on agreed methodology per
the purchase agreeement. Accordingly, the Company has recognised a Liability payable to promoters of acquired subsidiary for the
present value ol such future obligation based on a best estimate available with the mangement. Consequently, such amounts had also been
recorded as an Investment in the standalone financial statements of the Company as at March 31, 2020.

The Company has reassessed the Liability payable to promoters of acquired subsidiary during the eurrent year based on the actual results
available (applying the agreed methodology) and accordingly reversed an amount of Rs.197.35 Lakhs as the same is no longer required to
be paid.(Refer Note 28)
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Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(Al amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

(@ On the date of acquisition of Matrix Business Services India Private Limited ("Matrix"). Matrix had a refund of Income Tax
Receivable for the Assessment Years 2018-19 and 2019-20 amounting to INR 619 lakhs. As per the terms of the investment agreement
entered for the acquisition of Matrix, upon receipt of the aforementioned refund, the Group is required to pay the refund received io the
promotors ol Matrix, as defined in the investment agreement. A financial liability towards this refund which was recognised in the
consolidated financial statements and the amount outstanding above includes Rs 125 lakhs withheld towards any potential adjustments

that may arise upon completion of the income tax assessment,

The Company believes that the amount withheld is adequate to cover for any polential adjustments that may arise upon completion of the
assessment for the aforesaid years, post which the amounts will be paid to the erstwhile promoter/ selling sharcholders. net of

adjustments, if any,

22A Other non current financial liabilities (At Amortised Cost)

Liability payable to promoters of acquired subsidiary (Refer note 22)

23 Deferred Tax Liabilities (Non-Current)
Intangible assets arising on acquisition (Refer Note 3A)

24 Short term provisions

Provision for gratuity (Refer Note 40(A))

Provision for gratuity - reimbursement employees (Refer Note 40(B))

Provision for leave benefits
Provision for tax litigations *
Provision for Onerous Contract **
Other provisions

Total short term provisions

The table gives the information about movement of the provision :

* Provision for litigations (Refer note 34)
At the beginning of the year

Created during the year

Utilised during the year

Al the end of the year

** The table gives the information about movement of Onerous contract

Provision for Onerous Contract
At the beginning of the year
Created during the year

Utilised during the year

At the end of the year

25 Current tax liabilities (net)

Provision lor income taxes (net of advance income taxes)

26 Other current liabilities

Advance from customers

Advance from DDU-GKY

Statutory dues and related liabilities
Provision against PF order (Refer Note 33)
Total other non-current liabilities

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
844 83 1,363.51
844.83 1,363.51
As at
As at
March 31, 2020
March 31, 2021 (Restated)
255.61 310.72
155.61 310.72
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
391.22 268,19
1,346.35 1,215.41
919.98 769.05
28.03 28.05
101.30 -
- 10.15
2,786.90 2,290.85
28.05 44,74
- (16.69)
28.05 28.05
101.30 -
101.30 -
As at As at
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
383.68 119.48
383.68 119.48
As at As at
March 31,2021 Mareh 31, 2020
18.30 72.92
742.08 -
3,734.67 4,206.32
28.31 2831
4,523.36 4,307.55
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As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Note  Particulars

27 Revenue from operations

Sale of services 1.20,068.36 1.32.043.86
Sale of products 290.21 35218
Total Revenue from operations 1,20,358.57 1,32,396.04
Revenue by Geography As at As at
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
India 1.19,680,51 1.32.176.40
Outside India 678,06 219.64
Tatal revenue from contracts with customers 1,20,358.57 1,32,396.04
Timing of revenue recognition As at As at
March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020
Goods transferred at a point in time 290.21 35218
Service transferred at a point in time 3.692.34 1,229.79
Service transferred over a period of time 1,16,376.02 1,30.814.07
Total 1,20,358.57 1,32,396.04
Reconciliation of Revenue from sale of products/services with the contracted price As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Revenne as per contracted price 1,22,563.15 1,33,092.23
Adjustments - Estimated price concessions (2,204.58) (696.19)
Total 1,20,358.57 1,32,396.04
“The table gives the information about movement of the Estimated price concessions As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Al the beginning of the year 84867 704 35
Created during the year * 2,204,58 696,19
Utilised during the year -1.294.47 -551.87
Al the end of the year 1,758.78 848.67

* includes provision in relation to expected penalty amounting to Rs.1 476 38 lakhs (Refer note below)
# meludes eredit notes passed in relation (o penalty amounting to Rs. 561,98 lakhs (Refer note below)

Adjustment made in relation to potential penalty from customer

During the curent year, the company has received an intinvation from one of its customer intending to withiield certain payments based on their interpretation of the penalty
clauses contaned in the agrecment with the said customer. The Company believes that considering various factual and circumstantial aspects, the interpretation taken by the
custornier may not be tenable. The Company continues to negotiate with the customer on interpretation and the extent to which the penalties can be levied under the contract,
However, on a prudent basis management has made adjustments amounting to Rs. 1.476.38 lakhs (which includes an amount of Rs. 1,299 lakhs for services provided during
earlier years) to cover the risk of potential penal adjustments arising on account of such request from the customer., These adjustments are one off'in nature and recorded
over and abave the variable price concession estimates accounted using historical trends. The entire adjustment have been accounted in the current year in line with the
timing of the intimation received from the cusiomer as the Company considers this to be a change in estimate.

Contract Balances As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Trade Receivables (Refer Note 103 20813.30 29.231.09

Unbilled Revenne (Refer Note 13 & Note 14) 8718383 7.402.94

Trade receivables are non - interest bearing and are generally on credit terms of up to 90 days (3 st March 2020 : 90 days).

28 Other income As at Asat

March 31, 2001 March 31, 2020
Profit on sale of investment - 4.15
Profit on sale of property, plam & equipment (net) 21.88 3.04
Provision no longer required written back 114.96 45.60
Other non-operating income 10,03 28.71
Fair value gam on Financial Assets at FVTPL 5528 30.66
Exchange Differences (net) 16.54 6.45
Liability payable to promoters of aequired subsidiary no longer required writien back * 197.35 -
Tatal Other income 416,04 118.61
* Liability payable to promoters of acquired subsidiary no longer required written back

During the previous year, the Company has entered the Shareholder’s Agreement with the two companics (Matrix Business Services India Private Limited & Washroom
Hygiene Soluions Private Limited "WHC") and its erstwhile promoters, the Company has an obligation to purchase the remaining shares held by the promoters of such
companies based on agreed methodology per the purchase agreement. Accordingly, the Company has recognised a liability payable to promatess of acquired subsidiary for
the present value of such future obligation based on a best estimate available with the management amounting to Rs. 1,619.53.

The Company has reassessed the Liability payable to promoters of acquired subsidiary during the current year based on the actual results available (applying the agreed
methodology) and accordingly reversed an amount of Rs. 197.35 Lakhs as the same is no longer required 1o be paid.
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19 Finance income As at As at
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
[nterest income - Bank deposits 124.54 63.55

Intercst on Income Tax refund T1.84 -

Tnterest incomee - Others 19.48 7.32
Total Finance income 215.86 70.92

30 Cost of materials consumed As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Liventory at the beginning of the year 3399 141.47
Add: Purchase 1.585.44 223144
1,619.43 23129
Less : Inventory at the end of the year 26.27 3399
Cost of materials consumed 1,593.16 2,338.92

31 Purchase of traded gouds As at As at
March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020
Purchase of traded goods 1.411.54 2.398.38
‘Total Purchase of traded goods 1,411.54 2,398,338

32 Changes in inventories of finished goods and traded goods As at As at

3

34

35

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Finished goods

Closing stock §1.63 130.53
Opening stock 130.53 121.26
Sub total (A) (4890 927
Siock-in-trade
Closing stock 363.15 470,39
Opening stock 47039 18590
Sub total (B) (107.24) 284,50
Total Changes in Inventories 156.14 (293.76)
Employee benefit expenses As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Salaries and wages * 87,547.54 04,050.22
Contribution to provident and other fund ** (Refer Note 40) 9,844 40 10.550.08
Less: Income from govermment grants # (319.46) (802.57)
Gratuity expense ( Refer Note 40) 676,55 547.02
StalT wellare expenses 401,55 755.32
Emplayee stock option expenses ( Refer Note 42) 14.89 32564
Total Employee benefit expenses 98,165.48 1.05425.71

* The company has dunng the lockdown period (March 25, 2020 to May 17. 2020}, adopted the principle of *No work, No pay”, in case of workers working on essential
services projects. where certain employees have opted to take voluntary leave. Furthermore. in relation to certain cmployees working for projects involving non-essential
services, the company had verbal consensus/understanding for non / part payment of wages depending on the extent of work performed and amounts recovered from the
customers. The company has evaluated the impact of legal provisions in this regard including the requirements of the Minsitry of Home Affairs order dated March 29, 2020
as well as obtained an external legal opinion basis which the management considers that the position taken by the company is legally tenable and accordingly no additional
provision has been made in this regard in the books of records. Na claims have been received as on date in this repard from any of the employees concerned.

**Durning the previous year, one of the subsidiary Company received an order from the High Court (against the appeal made by the PF department) directing the Company to
pay PF on certain allowances 10 be considered for PF computation for the salary paid for the period FY 2008-11 . Based on the High court order and in compliance with
Supreme Court judgement daied February 28, 2019.the said Company has created provision amounting to RsNil for FY 2020-21 (Mareh 31, 2020 : Rs. 72.65), The

Company had paid an amount Rs.44.34 Lakhs under protest in earlier years and the same will be wilised agoinst the payment of such Hability,

#The Company 15 availing of benefits under a government scheme - Pradhan Mantn Rejgar Protsahan Yojana (PMRPY) wherein the Central Government is paying the
employer’s contribution towards Employee Pension Scheme / Provident Fund in respect of new employees (joined till March 2019) meeting specified criteria.

Finance cosis As at As at
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
Interest on borrowings 24803 695.21
Unwinding of discount on Liability payable to promoters of acquired subsidiary 38751 293.73
Interest on income fax - 1333
Interest on lease liabilities ( Refer Note 41) 49,06 51.59
Taotal Finance costs 684.60 1,053.86
Depreciation and amortization expense Kt As at
March 31,2028 ™ ::;::It‘ej?m
Amortization of intangible assets { Reler Note 3A) 278.90 193.39
Depreciation of property, plant & equipment (Refer Note 3) 269.06 1.190.66
Diepreciation of Right To Use Asscts (Refer Note 41) 25037 2120
Impairment of Intangible Assets (Refer Note 3A) - 530
Total Depreciation and amortization expense 1,498.33 1,616.64
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36 Impairment losses on financial instrument and contract assets As at As at
March 31,2021  March 31, 2020
Impairment for doubtful trade receivables 398.34 44211
Inpairment on doubtful advanecs 10.59 61.40
lmpaitment for doubtful reimbursement right of gratuity 59,83 -
Tatal Impairment Losses on financial insturment and contract assets 468.76 503.51
37 Other expenses As ai it
March 31, 2021 M‘;;::‘i't;:':m
Payment to Associates 64483 T01.03
Verification expenses 635.06 874,09
Consumption of stores and spares 47.96 55.79
Communication expenses 165.04 254.74
Canteen materials 94.77 696.30
Cleaning materials and consumables 259947 322550
Advances written of 44.63 20,89
Bad debts written of 64.40 23723
Freight and forwarding charges 67.19 74.02
Insurance 18583 22,33
Legal and professional fees 270.57 604.15
Power and fuel 132,30 212.64
Postage and Courier Charges 1.679.99 91958
Printing and stationery 16385 12322
Provision for Oncrous Contracy 101,30 &
Provision for Dimunition of value of inventories - 2.00
Director sitting fees - 29,00
Pavment 1o auditor 75435 7922
Rates and taxes 92,38 5988
Remt 38546 670.32
Repairs and maimtenance - Buildings 93.95 -
Repairs and maintenance - Others 44342 130.35
CSR expenditure 7326 69.70
Site maimtenance expenses 325791 402542
Travelling and conveyance 47013 973,85
Loss on sale of tangble assets 097 10.92
Traming Expense 105.65 545.73
Miscellancous expenses 23275 187 .87
Total Other Expenses 12,118.52 14,805.77
As at As at
Payment to auditors : March 31,2021  March 31, 2020
As auditors :
Statutory audit 7170 6755
Other Services a7s 10.00
In other capacity :
Reimbursement of expenses - 1.67
75.45 79.22
As at As at
Details of CSR expenditure: March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Gross amount required to be spent by the Group during the year ; 73.26 69.70
Amount spent during the year ending on 31st March, 2021: In Cash Yet to be
Paid In Cash
(i) Construction/acquisition of any asset - "
(11} Om purposes other than (i) above 7326 -
Amount spent during the year ending on 315t March, 2020 In Cash Yet to be

Paid In Cash
(1) Construction/acquisition of any asset - -

(1) On purposes other than (i) above 69.70 -
Details relating to spent/unspent obligations March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020
i) Contribution 1o Charitable Trust 73.26 69.70

73.26 69.70
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As at iy
Mote Particulars March 31, 2020
March 31, 2021 (Restated)
38  Income Tax Expense
The major components of income tax expense for the years ended 3 1st March 2021 and 31st March 2020 are:
Current income tax:
Current income tax charge 1,534.25 675.79
Tax related to arlier years 13.90 294
Deferred tax:
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences (1002.32) (66.44)
Total Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss 545.83 612.29
Other Comprehensive income (OCI) Scetion
Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during in the year: - -
Re-measurement gains and (losses) on defined benefit obligations (net) (21.63) 15.41
Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for March 31, 2021 and March
31, 2020:
Accounting Profit before income tax 4,883.94 4,736.54
Enacted tax rate in India 25.17% 2517%
Profit before income tax multiplied by enacted tax rate 1,229.19 1,192.09
Effects of:
Effect of change in substantively enacted tax rates on deforred tax (5.68) 714.90
Ind as adjustments 3.69 18.96
Additional deduction under Income Tax based on employment generation (846.47) (1,389.33)
Others income taxable at diffrenent rate - 6.37
Interest on income tax 5.83 4.17
Adjustment in respect of tax related to earlier years 16.88 7.29
Adjustment related to change in tax rate - (44.56)
Liability payable to promoters of acquired subsidiary re-measurement 47.86 73.92
Tax exempt income . (1.36)
Others 94.53 29.83
Net effective income tax 545.83 612.29
Other Comprehensive income (QOCI) Section
Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during in the year:
Re-measurement gains and (losses) on defined benefit obligations (net) (21.63) 1541
(21.63) 15.41
Deferred tax liabilities has not been created for tax on potential dividend from undisturbuted profits in subsidiaries, as the group currently
intends to retain such reserves for the foreseable future.
39  Earnings per equity share

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Group by the weighted average
number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are caleulated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Group by the weighted average number of
Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the
dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares.

The following reflects the profit and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Aot As at

Particulars March 31, 2021 Mi::,?:t; il)] 20
Profit attributable to equity shareholders of Group 4,086.25 4,134.46
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Group adjusted for the effect of 4086.25 4,134 46
dilution

Weighted average number of Equity shares for bagic EPS 528.17 528.17
Effect of dilution:
Employee Stock Options 3.63 3.48
Weighted average number of Equity shares adjusted for the effect of 531.80 531.65
dilution
Earning per share of INR 10 each

- Basic 7.74 7.83
- Diluted 7.68 g%
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40

a)

b)

c)

d)

Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 19 "Employce benefits":
(i) Defined contribution plan:

The Group provident fund are the defined contribution plan. An amount of INR.9,844.40 Lakhs being contribution made to recognised provident
fund is recognised as expense for the year ended 31 March 2021 (31 March 2020: INR. 10,550.08 Lakhs and included under Employee benefit

expense (Note 33) in the Statement of Profit and loss.

(ii) Defined benefit plans:
Gratuity (Regular)

The Group has defined benefit gratuity plan for its employees. The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, Under the Act,
every employee who has completed 4 years and 240 days of service are eligible for gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn) for each

completed year of service. The level of benefits provided depends on the member's length of service and salary at retirement,

The following table summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss and the funded status and amounts

recognised in the balance sheet for the gratuity plan:
The amounts recognised in Balance Sheet are as follows:

Particulars Aol Avat
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation 2058.23 2,583 41
Fair value of plan assets (313.48) (269.95)
Net Liability or asset 2,644.75 2,313 .46
Current 301.22 268.19
Non = Current 2,253.53 2,045.26
The amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss are as follows:
Particulars g s
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Service cost :
Current service cost 558.318 424,68
Past service cost and loss/ (gain) on curtailments and settlement - 11.16
Net interest cost : v
Interest Expense on Defined Benefit Obligation 121.86 115.80
Interest Income on Plan Assets (3.69) {4.61)
Total included in 'Employee Benefit Expense’ (Refer Note 33) 676.55 547.03
Remeasurement recognized in other comprehensive income
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31,2020
Components of actuarial gain/losses on obligations
Due to change in financial assumptions 1.46 (42.18)
Due to change in demographic assumption 43.79 182.69
Due to experience adjustments (126.39) (11.81)
Return on plan assets (0.82) 0.90
Total (81.96) 129.60

The changes in the present value of defined benefit obligation representing reconciliation of opening and closing balances thercof are as

follows:
: As at As at
Fartionlae March 31, 2021 March 31,2020

Opening defined benefit obligation 2,583.40 1,781.60
Defined benefit obligation for accusition during the year - 21445
Current service cost 537.94 424.68
Interest cost 125.31 12385
Actuarial losses/(gains) (1.55) -

Due to change in financial assumptions 76.88 (42.20)

Due to change in demographic assumption (104.16) 182.69

Due to experience adjustments (19.79) (12.53)
Past Service Cost - 11.16
Benefit Paid (239.81) {100.30)
Closing balance of the present value of defined benefit ebligation 2,958.22 2,583.40

2
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€)

Reconciliation of Net Liability / (Asset)

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Net Liability / (Asset) at the beginning of the period 2,277.84 1,692.09
Defined benefit obligation for accusition during the year - 46.63
Defined Benefit cost included in the Profit / Loss 649.00 554.83
Defined Benefit cost included in Other Comprehensive Income (54.84) 129.82
Benefit Paid (259.24) (145.53)
Net Liability / (Asset) at the end of the period 2,612.76 1,277.84

L
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40 Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 19 "Employee benefits": (continued)

f)  Principal actuarial assumptions at the Balance Sheet date:

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31,2020
1) Discount rate 4.52% -6.29% 5.06% - 6.36%)
2) Salary growth rate 5.00% - 8.92% 5.00% - 11.62%
3) Attrition rate 31.87% - 51.87% at all ages 13.73% -49.25%
4) Retirement age 58 58
5) Maturity tables Indian Assured Lives Indian Assured Lives Mortality
Mortality (2012-14) Ultimate (2012-14) Ultimate Table
Table

g) A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Change Obligation Change
i)  Discount rate +0.5% 2,811.42 +0.5% 2,309.37
-0.5% 2,876.17 -0.5% 2,364.89
ii) Salary growth rate +0.5% 2,883.28 +0.5% 2,369.63
0.5% 2,803.08 -0.5% 2,304.47
h) Expected cashflows based on past service liability
Particulars G Exgat
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
1} Yearl 945.36 862 86
2) Year2 716.16 608.84
3) Year3 516.76 48334
4) Year4 355.21 345.84
5) Year$ 242,09 236.83
6) Next 5 years 377.94 345.19
i) The major categories of plan assets of the fair value of the total plan assets are as follows:
Particulars a5t As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Investment Details
Others 136.20 269.95
Total 136.20 269.95

B  Gratuity (Reimbursement from clients)

The Group has recognised gratuity liability and reimbursement right in respect of associate employees in accordance with Ind AS 19. The following
table summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss and the funded status and amounts recognised in
the balance sheet for the gratuity plan:

a) Net defined benefit liability

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation 2,489.18 2,404 .98
Fair value of plan assets 5 &
Net Liability 2,489.18 2,404.98
Current 1,346.35 1,215.41
Non - Current 1,142.83 1,189.57
b) Net benefit cost (refer note 1 below)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31,2020
Current service cost 590.51 283.62
Net actuarial (gain) / loss recognised in the year (541.45) 729.76
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 106.01 76.62
Net benefit expense 155.07 1,090.00

iployee benefits expenses towards gratuity and related reimbursement right for associate employees for year ended March 31, 2021 Rs.155.08
farch 31, 2020: Rs. 1,090.00 lakhs) have been netted off in the Statement of Profit and Loss. \J
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¢) Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligation representing reconciliation of opening and closing balances thereof are as

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Opening defined benefit obligation 2.404.98 1,512.00
Current service cost 590.51 283.62
Interest cost 106.01 76.62
Actuarial losses/(zains)
Due to change in financial assumptions - 68.48
Due to change in demographic assumption (121.21) 166.94
Due to experience adjustments (420.23) 49434
Benefit Paid (70.87) {197.02)
Closing balance of the present value of defined benefit obligation 2,489.19 2,404.98
40 Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 19 "Employee benefits": (continued)
d) Principal actuarial assumptions used in determining the gratuity obligations are shown below
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
1) Discount rate 4.52% 5.06%
2) Salary growth rate (Duration based) 7.24% 10.39%
3 Attrition rate (Age based) 44.70% at all ages 45.72% at all ages
4) Retirement age (Years) 58 58
5)  Mortality tables Indian Assured Lives Indian Assured Lives Mortality
Mortality (2012-14) Ultimate | (2006-08 ) Ultimate Table
Table

¢}  Sensitivity analysis
A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions on defined benefit obligation as at March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 are as shown
below:

Gratuity Plan (Reimbursement from clients)

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31,2020
Change Obligation Change Obligation
i) Discount rate +).5% 2,031.14 +0.5% 2,382.48
0.5% 2,074.79 0.5% 2,428.02
ii)  Salary growth rate +0.5% 2,078.91 +0.5% 2,431.63
0.5% 2,026.88 -0.5% 2,378.71
f) Expected cashflows based on past service liability
As at Asat
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31,2020
1)  Yearl 71431 1008.17
2) Year 2 494.77 535.51
3)  Year3 382.68 3784
4)  Yeard 263.13 279.55
5)  Years 173.72 189.08
6) Next 5 years 228.40 256.4

This space has been intentionally left blank
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42

Lease details

The Group has lease contracts for building used in its operations. Leases of building generally have lcasc terms between 1 - 5 years, vehicles have lease
terms of | - 3 yearsand furniture and fittings between 1-2 years. The Group’s obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor’s title to the leased assets.
The Group also has certain leases of building, furniture and fittings with lease term less than 12 months where it applies the *short-term lease” and *lease of
low-value assets’ recognition exemptions for these leases.

; Fumniture &
Particulars Building Vehicle fittings Total
As at April 01, 2019 603.24 0.00 127 604.51
Additions 131.73 12.69 0.00 144.42
Transfer from PPE 12.69 0.00 0.00 12.69
Depreciation expense (224.42) (1.70) (1.08) (227.20)
As at March 31, 2020 523.24 10.99 0.19 534.43
Additions 194.15 - - 194.15
Deletions 22.03 (9.34) - 12.69
Disposal (123.96) - - (123.96)
Depreciation cxpense (248.54), (1.65) (0.18) (250.37)
As at March 31, 2021 366.92 0.00 0.01 366.92

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities (included under financial liabilities) and the movements during the period:

As at As at

PRAEIME 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Asat April 01 71335 655.06
Additions (net) 70.19 162.34
Accretion of interest 49.06 51.59
Payments (383.23) (355.66)
As at March 31 44937 713.33
Current 217.50 318.80
Non-current 231.87 104,54

The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities in the financial statements are a reasonable approximation of their fair values since the
Company does not anticipate that the carrying amounts would be significantly different from the values that eventually be received or settled.

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities are disclosed in Note 51 (Financial risk management objectives and policies).
The effective interest rate for lease liabilities is 8.84%, with maturity between 2021-2025.
The following are the amounts recognised in profit or loss:

As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 250.37 22720
Interest expense on lease liabilities 49.06 51.59
Expense relating to short-term leases (included in other expenses) 38546 670.32
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 684.89 949.11

The Company had total cash outflows for leases of ¥ 383.23 lakhs in 31 March 2021 ¥ 380.23 in 31 March 2020).

Share-based payments

Employee Share-option Plan

On April 17, 2019, 'Updater Employee Stock Option Plan' 2019 ("ESOP 2019") has been approved by the Board of Directors and also has been approved
by Extra-Ordinary General Mecting of the members of the Company. The purpose of the ESOP 2019 is to reward the critical employees for their
association, dedication and contribution to the goals of the Company. The options issued under the plan has a term of 1-3 years as provided in the stock
grant agreement and vest based on the terms of individual grants, When exercisable, each option is convertible into one equity share.

The expense recognised (net of reversal) for share options during the year is INR 14,89 lakhs (March 31, 2020: 325.64). There are no cancellations or
modifications to the awards in March 31, 2021.

Tranche I (A)

The Company has granted cerfain options during the previous year to the employees based on past performanece of such employees and vesting condition
being continued employment with the Company as on date of vesting. (April 17, 2020)

Tranche I (B), I and 111

The Company has granted certain options during the previous year with future performance of the Company as criteria which has been defined based ona
matrix as per the ESOP 2019 (for Tranche [ (B), I and [IT). Management based on future projections believes that number of options expecied to be vested is
Nil and accordingly ESOP reserve have not been created for said tranches.

A. Details of ESOP 2019

Name of the scheme - ESOP 2019 Tranche-1(A)  Tranche-1(B)  Tranche-1I Tranche - 111
Date of grant 17-Apr-19 17-Apr-19 18-Oct-19 10-Jan-20
Number granted 406,772 521,235 144,788 77,220
Exercise price (in INR) 10 111 111 111
Vesting period I year 1-3 years 1 - 3 years 1 - 3 years

\%
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Vesting condition 100% on April  25% on 25% on
17, 2020 Septermber 30,  September 30,
2020 2020
25% on 25% on 25% on September
September 30,  September 30, 30, 2020
2021 2021 25% on September
50% on 50% on 30, 2021
September 30,  September 30,  50% on September
2022 2022 30, 2022
B. Movement in the options granted to employees
Particulars Number of options Number of options
March 31,2021 March 31,2020 March 31,2021  March 31, 2020
Qutstanding at the beginning of the year 1,053,490 - 7.0 .
Options granted during the year - 1,150,015 - 75.28
Options exercised during the year - - - -
Options expired during the year (219,595) (96,525) 111,00 111.00
OQutstanding at the end of the year 833,895 1,053,490 61.73 72.00

Exercisable at the end of the year

The range of exercise prices for options outstanding at the end of the year was Rs. 10 to Rs, 111 (March 31, 2020: Rs 111)

The weighted average remaining contractual life for the share options outstanding as at March 31, 2021 is 1.5 years (March 31, 2020: 0.50 to 2.5 years).

42 Share-based payments (continued)

C., Fair value of options granted

The Black-Scholes valuation model has been used for computing the weighted average fair value considering following inputs:

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Exercise price 10to 111
Expected volatility 20%
Expected dividend yield (%) No Option have -
Risk free interest rates been granted 7.40%
Expected life of the option during the year I -3 years
Weighted average share price 93.00
Fair Value of the Option 83.71

The expected life of the share options is based on historical data and cument expectations and is not necessarily indicative of exercise patterns that may
occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility over a period similar to the life of the options is indicative of future

trends, which may not necessarily be the actual outcome.

43 Details of dues to Micro enterprises and small enterprises

Information as required to be furnished as per section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) for the year
ended March 31, 2021 is given below. This information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information

available with the Company:

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020

{a) The principal amount and the interest due thercon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each

accounting year

Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises 366.19 718.58

Interest due on above 9.19 26.27

(b) Payment made to suppliers (other than interest) beyond the appointed day, during the year 573.26 206.87

(d) Interest due and payable to suppliers under MSMED Act, for payments already made 13.40 24.92

(e) Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the vear to suppliers under MSMED Act 2259 51.19

44 Capital management

For the purpose of the Group's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the
equity holders. The primary objective of the company's capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, retum capital to sharcholders or issue new shares.
The Group moniters capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Group includes within net debt, interest

bearing loans and borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents.

Particulars March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Norn-current borrowings - 0.91
Current borrowings 1,161.01 8,995.23
Lease Liahilities 449.37 713.34
Less: cash and cash equivalents (4,558.87) (1,743.45)
(et debt (2,948.49) 7.966.04
ital 29.025.14 24,850.75
d net debt 26,076.65 32.816.79
ratio -11.31% 24.27%

nges were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020.
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45 Commitments and Contingencies

Particulars March 31,2021 | March 31, 2020
a. Contingent Liabilities
- Claims made against the Company not acknowledged as debts in respect of income 1ax matters = 97.28
Provision for bonus for FY 2014-15 persuant to retrospective amendment to "Payment of Bonus Act” for which an 27.7% 27,78
interim stay has been granted by the High court
- Claims made against the Company not acknowledged as debts in respect of GST 2177
- Others* 69.56 13.44

b. Commitments

-Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for net of capital 542 123.19
advances

* (1) Include claim made against the Company by labour department amounting to Rs. 13.44 Lakhs in respeet of minimum wages and cumrently siay order is
granted by High Court of Madras.

(2) The Gujarat Panchayats and Municipal Corporations has made claim against the Company for amount Rs, 56.12 Lakhs in respect of Professional Tax.
The Company has filed the appeal at Court of Professional Tax Officer and Taluka Development Officer at Sanand and deposited the said amount under
Protest and presented same as Balance with Government Authority (Non-current assets) in the consolidated Financial Stalements.

No liability is expected to arise. The Company has assessed that it is only possible, but not probable, that outflow of economic resources will be required.

46 Segment information
The Group is engaged in one business namely providing facility management services & associated services and the operations primarily caters to the
domestic and foreign market. The Managing Director of the company has been identified as being the chief operating decision maker (CODM), he evaluates
the company's performance, allocate resources based on the analysis of the various performance indicator of the company as a single unit. Therefore, there is
no reportable segment for the company as per the requirement of Ind-AS 108 "Operating Segments”. The Group operates in more than one geographical
segment putlined in the table below:

Geogrpahic information

The geographical information analyses the Company's revenues by the Company's country of domicile (i.c., India) and other countries. In presenting the
geographical information, segment revenue has been based on the geographical location of customers, The company has only one geographical location
based on location of assets.

Revenue from external customers March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020

India 119,680.51 132,176.40
Outside India 678.06 219.64
Total revenue as per statement of profit and loss 120,358.57 132.396.04

Information about Major Customers
Revenue from one customer amounting to INR. 11,508.97 lakhs (31 March 2020: INR 8,437.36 lakhs), constitute more than 10% of the total revenue of the

Company in the current year.

Non-Current operating assets March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
India 7.522.35 8,543.88
Outside India

7,522.35 §,543.88
Non-current assets for this purpose consist of property, plant and equipment, Capital work-in-progress, goodwill, right-of-use assets and intangible assets.
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47 Related party disclosures

(A) Names of related parties and nature of relationship are as follows:

Description of Relationship Name of the related parties
Subsidiary Updater Services Foundation (Section 8 Company)*
Entities under Common Control Best Security Services Private Limited

Tangy Facility Solutions Private Limited
Tangirala Infrastructure Development Private Limited
Updater services Private Limited - Employees group gratuity scheme

Key Management Personnel (KMP) Mr. T Raghunandana, Director
Mrs. T Shanthi, Director
Mr. Jayaram L B, Company Secretary
Mr, Omprakash B R, Chief Financial Officer
(from June 01, 2019 till January 10,2020)

Mr. Balaji Swaminathan, Chief Financial Officer (from January 10, 2020)
Mr. Sunil Rewachand Chandiramani, Director
Mr. Shankar Gopalakrishnan, Director

* The shareholding of this entity is held by the Company and therefore this entity would constitute a subsidiary under the Companies
Act, 2013. However, as the Group has determined that the Company does not control the entity since there’s neither any exposure
nor any right over any kind of returns from investee. Hence, basis the requirements of IND AS 110, the same is not considered a
subsidiary for the purpose of this financial statement.

(B) Transactions entered during the year Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Rent Expense

Mr. T. Raghunandana 109.61 114.37
Mrs. T. Shanthi 109.61 114.37
Services Provided

Tangirala Infrastructure Development Private Limited 0.13 1.03
Updater Services (UDS) Foundation 355 4.83
Services received

Best Security Services Private Limited 172.14 206.82
Tangirala Infrastructure Development Private Limited 234 -
Supply of Material

Best Security Services Private Limited 17.93 10.81

Managerial remuneration

Mr. T. Raghunandana 149,60 192.00
Mr. Jayaram L B 40.09 54.80
Mr. Balaji Swaminathan 40.09 16.74
Mr. Om Prakash B.R - 44.34

Director sitting fees

Mr. Sunil Rewachand Chandiramani - 12.00
Mr. Shankar Gopalakrishnan - 12.00
Reimbursement / (recovery) of expenses

Updater Services (UDS) Foundation - 0.09
Mr. Shankar Gopalakrishnan - 0.10
Best Security Services Private Limited 1.48 -
CSR Expenses

Updater Services (UDS) Foundation 67.53 69.70

19.06 \>&ﬂ

Security Deposit - Paid / (Refund)
Mr. T. Raghunandana
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Mrs. T Shanthi, Director 19.06 -

Contribution to Gratuity

Updater Services Private Limited - 184.97 327.31
Employees Company Gratuity Scheme

Related party disclosures (continued)

(C) Balance outstanding at the end of Year ended Year ended

the year 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Investment in Equity

Updater Services (UDS) Foundation 1.00 1.00
Security Deposits (Asset)

Mr. T. Raghunandana 114.37 95.31
Mrs. T, Shanthi 114.37 95.31
Trade Payable

Best Security Services Private Limited 15.14 38.17
Mr. T. Raghunandana u 424
Mrs. T. Shanthi - 26.93
Tangirala Infrastructure Development - 0.25
Private Limited

Director Fee payable

Mr. Shankar Gopalakrishnan - 5.40
Mr. Sunil Rewachand Chandiramani - 5.40
Trade Receivable

Updater Services (UDS) Foundation 0.61 6.19
(D) Compensation to key managerial personnel is follows:

Consideration to key managerial Year ended Year ended

personnel 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Salaries and other employee benefits*@ 210.24 307.88
@The employee stock compensation expenses for the year ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 include charges of % 0.85

lakhs and ¥ 19.88 Lakhs towards key managerial personal respectively.

*The remuneration to the key managerial personnel does not include the provisions made for gratuity and leave benefits, as these are
determined on an actuarial basis for the Company as a whole.

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

The sales to and purchases from related party are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions.
Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash. For the year ended 31 March
2021, the group has not recorded any amount towards impairment of loans and receivables relating to amounts owed by related
parties (31 March 2020: Nil). This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the
related party and the market in which the related party operates. \A

L
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48 Significant acconnting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires management 1o make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses. assets and habilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilitics.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require & material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or
liabilities affected in [uture periods.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilitics within the next financial year. are described below, The Group
based ils assumptions and cslimatcs on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumslances and
assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Group.
Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

a) Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment leave encashment benefit and the present value of the gratuity obligation
are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ [rom actual developments
in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in
the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions arc
reviewed at each reporting date. Further details about defined benefit obligations are given in Note 40,

b) Estimate related to expected price concession

Expected price concessions {rom customers are based on assumptions relating to risk of eredit notes issued. The Group uses judgment in making
these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the calculation. based on Group's past history. existing market conditions as well as forward
looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

¢) Revenue recognition
The performance obligation is satisfied over-time and payment is generally due upon completion of service. There is a single performance
obligation for providing the facility management services.

d) Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinte useful life

lmpairment exists when the carrying value of goodwill or the cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is its value in use. The
value in use calculation is based on a DCT model. The cash flows are derived from the budgets and do not include restructuring activities that the
Group is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested. The
recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used
for extrapolation purposes.

¢) Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination aptions — Company as lessee

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an option to extend the
lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, il it is reasonably certain not to be
exercised,

The Company has lease contracts and rental contracls that include extension and termination options. The Company applies judgement in
evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exereise the option Lo renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant
factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise cither the renewal or termination. After the commencement dale, the Company
reassesses the lease term il there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not
1o exercise the option 10 renew or Lo lerminate.

The Company included the renewal period as part of the lease term for leases of Building with shorter non-eancellable period (i.e., three to five
years). The renewal periods for leases of building with longer non-cancellable periods (i.e.. 10 to 15 years) are not included as part of the lease
term as these are not reasonably certain 1o be exercised. Furthermore, the periods covered by termination options are included as part of the lease
term only when they are reasonably certain not to be exercised,

Refer to Note 41 for information on potential future rental payments relating to periods following the exercise date of extension and termination
options that are not included in the lease term.
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f) Fair value measurement of financial instruments
When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannol be measured based on quoted prices in active
markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inpuls to these models are taken from observable
markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include
considerations ol inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair
value of financial instruments. See Note 47 for further disclosures,

Contingent consideration, resulting from business combinations, is valued at fair value at the acquisition date as part of the business combination.
When the contingent consideration meets the definition of a financial liability, it is subsequently remeasured to fair value at each reporting date.
The determination of the fair value is based on discounted cash flows. The key assumptions take into consideration the probability of meeting
each performance target and the discount factor. (see 49 for details)

As part of the accounting for the acquisilion of Washroom Hygiene Concepts Privaie Limited Limited, contingent consideration with an
estimated fair value of INR 135.55 lakhs was recognised at the acquisition date and remeasured to INR 29,19 lakhs as at the reporting date, The
contingent consideration is classified as other financial liability.

¢) Share-based payments

Estimating fair valuc for share-based payment transactions requires delermination of the most appropriate valuation model, which is dependent
on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimation requires determination of the most appropriate inputs 1o the valuation model including
the expected life of the share option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them. The Black Scholes valuation model has
been used by the Management for share-based payment transactions. The assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for share-based
payment transactions are disclosed in Note 40.

h) Impairment of non-financial assets

lmpairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales
iransactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value
in usc calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years and do not include restructuring
activities that the Group is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being
tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the
growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. These estimates are most relevant to goodwill and other intangibles with indefinite useful lives
recognised by the Group. The key assumptions used to determine the recoverable amount for the different CGUS, including a sensitivity analysis,
are disclosed and further explained in Note 3A.

iy Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the externit that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
losses can be wtilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based
upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with luture tax planning sirategies.

These losses relate to subsidiaries that have a history of losses, expire in 8 years and may not be used to offset taxable income elsewhere in the
Group. The subsidiaries neither have any taxable tlemporary difference nor any tax planning opportunities available that could partly support the
recognition of these losses as deferred tax assets. On this basis, the Group has determined that it cannot recognise deferred tax assels on the tax
losses carried forward. in respect of its subsidiary.
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49 Fair values

Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial instruments, other than those the
carrying amounts that are reasonable approximations of fair values:

Particulars- Non-Current & Current

Carrying value

Fair value

31-Mar-21 | 31-Mar-20 | 31-Mar-21 | 31-Mar-20
Financial assets
Rental deposits 580.32 484 .84 58032 484 .84
Reimbursement right of gratuity 2.429.36 2404 98 2,420 36 2,404 98
Total 3,009.608 2.889.82 3.009.08 2.889.82
Financial liabilities
Lease Liabilities 44937 T13.34 44937 713.34
Liability payable to promoters of acquired subsidiary 1,686.93 2.238.53 1,686.93 2,238.53
Total 2,136.30 2.951.87 2,136.30 2,951.87

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade pavables, bank overdrafis, other financial assets and Other
financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments. Investment are measured at

cosl.

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction

between willing partics, other than in a forced or liguidation sale.

w
=

Fair value hicrarchy

The following table provides the fair value measurement hicrarchy of group's asset and liabilitics

Particulars

Fair value

Carrying value

Fair value

Hierarchy 3i1-Mar-21 | 31-Mar-20 | 31-Mar-21 | 31-Mar-20
Financial assets
Investments Level | 404 .40 154.40 404 .40 154.40
Rental deposits Level 3 580.32 484.84 580.32 484.84
Reimbursement right of gratuity Level 3 2,429.36 2.404.98 2,429.36 2,404 .98
Total 3.414.08 3.044.22 3.414.08 3.044.22
Financial liabilities
Lease Liabilities Level 3 449.37 713.34 449.37 713.34
Liability payable to promoters of acquired subsidiary Level 2 1,686.93 2.238.53 1,686.93 2,238.53
Total 2,136.30] 2.951.87 2,136.30 2951.87

There have been no transfers between the levels during the year.

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, loans, other current financial assels, short term borrowings. trade
payables and other current financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely duc to the shori-lerm maturitics of these instruments,

Notes

Level | inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date.
Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, cither directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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51 Financial risk management ohjectives and policies
The Group's principal financial liabilities is borrowings, trade payables and employee benefit payable. The main purpose of these financial
liabilities is to raise finance for the Group's operations. The Group has various financial assets such as loan, trade and other receivables, cash
and shori-term deposits, which arise directly from its operations.

The Group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group™s senior management oversees the management of these risks.
The Group's risk management assessment and policies and processes are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to
set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor such risks and compliance with the same,

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial
loss. Credit risk encompasses of both, the direct risk of default and the risk of deterioration of creditworthiness as well as concentration of
risks. Credit risk is controlled by analysing credit limits and creditworthiness of customers on a continuous basis to whom the credit has been
granted afier obtaining necessary approvals for credit. The Group is exposed to credit risk from its operaling activities (primarily trade
receivables) and loans receivables.

Trade and other receivables

In cases of customers where credit is allowed, the average credit period on such sale of goods ranges from 1 day to 30 days. The customer
credit risk is managed by the Group's established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality
of a customer is assessed based on the individual credit limits are defined in accordance with this assessment and outstanding customer
receivables are regularly monitored.

Ind AS requires an entity to recognise in profit or loss, the amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss
allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognised in accordance with Ind AS 109, The Group assesses at each
date of statements of financial position whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. Expected credit losses are measured
at an amount equal to the 12 month expected credit losses or at an amount equal to the life time expected credit losses if the credit risk on the
financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition.

The Group has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credil loss allowance for trade receivables based on a age wise provision
matrix which is prepared considering the historical data for collection of reccivables.

Exposure to credit risk:
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum expesure to credit risk is Rs, 20,813.30 lakhs
(Rs. 29,231.08 Lakhs asof March 31, 2020), being the total of the carrying amount of balances with trade receivables.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Group's financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rate

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and borrowings
affected, with all other variables held constant, the Group's profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rale borrowings, as
follows:

Effect on profit before tax |March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Increase in rate by 2% (77.82) (179.92)
Decrease in rate by 2% 77.82 179.92
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The objective of liquidity risk
management is to maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and
stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group's reputation. The group monitors its risk of a
shortage of funds on a regular basis. The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the
use of bank overdrafts.

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments:

As at March 31, 2021
Particulars Within1 | 4 3 years 3-5 years Total
year

Borrowings 1,161.01 - - 1,161.01
Trade Payables 3,185.25 - - 3,185.25
Other financial liabilities 11,743.68 $44.83 - 12,588.51
Lease Liabilities 217.50 231.87 - 44937
Total 16,307.44 1,076.70 - 17,384.14
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51 Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

As at March 31, 2020
Particulars Within 1 1-3 years Y — Total
year

Borrowings 890523 0.91 - £.996.14
Trade Payables 3,693.04 - - 3,693.04
Other financial liabilities 11,045.77 1,363.51 - 12,409.28
Lease Liabilities 318.80 394.54 - 71334
Total 24,052.84 1,758.96 - 25,811.80

Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange
rates, The Group’s exposure 10 the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company operating activities (when
revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency). However the net investment in subsidiaries are in Indian rupees, as a result there is
no exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates. Consequently, the group does not uses derivative financial instruments, such as
foreign exchange forward contracts, to mitigate the risk of changes in foreign currency exchange rates in respect of is forecasted cash flows

and trade receivables.
Foreign currency sensitivity

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD exchange rates, with all other variables held constant.
The impact on the Company’s profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities including non-designated

foreign currency derivatives and embedded derivatives.

Foreign Cwrrency Risk Management:

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end of each reporting period

are as follows :

Particulars Currency As at 31st March 2021 As at 31st March 2020
Amount in FC | Amount inRs. | Amount in FC | Amount in Rs.
. ; Usb 1.84 134.92 - -
Irade Receivables AED 499 99.81 ) }
Trade Payables UsSD 0.02 1.25 - -

Foreign Currency sensitivity analysis :

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 5% increase and decrease in the INR against the relevant foreign currencies.5% is the
rate used in order to determine the sensitivity analysis considering the past trends and expectation of the management for changes in the
foreign currency exchange rate. The sensitivity analysis includes the outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts
their translation at the period end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates, A positive number below indicates a increase in profit or equity
where the INR Strengthens 5% against the relevant currency. For a 5% weakening of the INR against the relevant currency, there would be a
comparable impact on the profit or equity and balance below would be negative.

USD/AED/SAR TO INR

Profit and Loss Equity
Increase by | Decrease by
5% 5% Increase by 5% | Decrease by 5%
March 31, 2021 11.67] 11.67 11.67 11.67

Note =

This is mainly atiributable to the exposure of receivable and payable outstanding in the above mentioned currencies to the Group at the end of

the reporting period,

L
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52 Material Partly - Owned Subsidiaries
Set out below is summarised financial information for each subsidiary that has non controlling interest that are material to the group. The
amount disclosed for each subsidiary are before inter company eliminations.

A, Avon Solutions & Logistics Private Limited

Summarised balance sheet

Avon Solutions & Logistics Private

Particulars Limited

March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Cash and cash equivalents 61.67 40.49
Current assets excluding cash and cash equivalents 242562 1,283.74
Non-current assets 012.38 462.01
Trade payables 268.32 97.40
Provisions 32747 331.02
Current liabilities excluding trade payables and provisions 1,003.28 463.38
Borrowings - 93.20
Non-current liabilities excluding borrowings and provisions 338 30.06
Equity 1,797.22 864.37
Share of NCI 24.00% 24.00%
Attributable to NCI 431.33 207.45

Summarised statement of profit and loss

Avon Solutions & Logistics Private

Particulars Limited

March 31, 2021 | Mareh 31, 2020
Total Revenue 5,714.03 4,207.07
Employee benefits expense 2,252.23 2,861.15
Finance costs 8.88 18.58
Depreciation and amortization expense 30.61 35.91
Other expenses 2,099.67 1,118.41
Profit before tax 1,345.56 202.97
Income tax expense 34237 69.34
Profit for the year 1,003.19 133.63
Other comprehensive income/(loss) (70.33) 88.98
Total comprehensive income for the year 932.86 222.62
Attributable to NCI 223.89 53.43

Summarised cash flow statement

Particulars

Avon Solutions & Logistics Private

Limited
March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Operating activities 165.29 176.10
Investing activities (14.53) (157.99)
Financing activities (129.57) (18.49)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 21.19 (0.38)

B. Fusion Foods and Catering Private Limited

Summarised balance sheet

Fusion Foods and Catering Private
Particulars Limited
March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Cash and cash equivalents 190.92 160.40
Current assets excluding cash and cash equivalents 1,252.53 1,630.70
Non-current assets 402.83 41841
Trade payables 646.09 1,003.35
Provisions 76.87 62.45
Current liabilities excluding trade payables and provisions 305.56 1,351.42
Borrowings - 6.88
Non-current liabilities excluding borrowings and provisions 80.50 182.15
Equity 737.25 675.93
Share of NCI o & Assp 34.60% 34.60%
Attributable to NCI N~ 255.22 234.00

W,
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52 Material Partly - Owned Subsidiaries (continued)
B. Fusion Foods and Catering Private Limited

Summarised statement of profit and loss

Fusion Foods and Catering Private

Particulars Limited

March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Total Revenue 5,480.26 7,124.05
Cost of materials consumed 3.433.32 4,772.24
Changes in inventories of Finished goods, work in progress and traded goods - -
Employee benefits expense 1,651.06 2,066.19
Finance costs 223 4.40
Depreciation and amortization expense 101.51 97.72
Other expenses 28547 345,93
Profit before tax 23.97 (162.42)
[ncome tax expense -25.54 -20.67
Profit for the year 49.51 (132.75)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) 11.81 2.98
Total comprehensive income for the year 61.32 (129.77)
Attributable to NCI 21.22 (44.90)

Summarised cash flow statement

Fusion Foods and Catering Private

Particulars Limited

March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Operating activities 109.34 506.31
Investing activities (26.07) (353.78)
Financing activities (52.74) -12.42
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 30.53 140.11

C. Global Flight Handling Services Private Limited

Summarised balance sheet

Global Flight Handling Services

Particulars Private Limited

March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Cash and cash equivalents 7.76 23.33
Current assets excluding cash and cash equivalents 179.52 161.83
Non-current assets 41.49 40.91
Trade payables 42.40 *
Provisions 1.78 1.78
Current liabilities excluding trade payables and provisions 53.78 193.21
Borrowings 115.34 67.22
Non-current liabilities excluding borrowings - -
Equity 15.41 32.85
Share of NCI 26.00% 30.00%
Attributable to NCI 4.01 0922

Summarised statement of profit and loss

Particulars

Global Flight Handling Services
Private Limited

March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Total Revenue 29.16 185.45
Cost of materials consumed . .
Purchases of traded goods - -
Changes in inventories of Finished goods, work in progress and traded goods - -
Employee benefits expense 16.69 91.79
Finance costs 10.77 -
Depreciation and amortization expense - 0,06
Other expenses 28.50 90.28
Profit before tax (26.80)} 332
Income tax expense (6.75) (3.12)
Profit for the year (20.04) 2.09
Other comprehensive income/(loss) - -
Total comprehensive income for the year (20.04) 209
Adtributable to NCI -5.21 0.63
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Summarised cash flow statement

Global Flight Handling Services

Particulars Private Limited

March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Operating activities (54.73) 21.26
Investing activities 0.01 -
Financing activities 36.56 (0.59)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (18.16) 20.67

_/-
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53 Group information

A} Subsidiaries

Name

Principal activities

Avon Selutions & Logistics Private Limited

Integrated Technical Staffing and Solutions Private Limited
Stanworth Management Private Limited

Tangy Supplies & Solutions Private Limited

Fusion Foods and Catering Private Limited

Zappy Home Solutions Private Limited

Global Flight Handling Services Private Limited
Matrix Business Services India Private Limited (26th April 2019)

Washroom Hygiene Concepis Private Limited (1st Oct 2019)
Updater Services (UDS) Foundation *

Mailroom logistics i

=

Technical staffing management
Integrated facility management
Supply of house keeping products
Corporate and Industrial catering
management

Hotne maintenance and houschold
services

Ground service support for airlines

services
Famile Hygiene Solutions

Act, 2013

People, Product, and Process assurance

Licensed under Section 8 of Companies

Country of ‘/a equity interest
incorporation | 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
India T6.005%%| 76.00%
India 99.99%| 99.99%
India 100.00% 100.00%
India 59.59%, 99,99%)
India 65.40%) 63.40%
India 99.99%| 99.99%
India T0.00%) T0.00%
India 75.00% 75.00%
India 90.00% T6.00%
India 100% 100%

* The shareholding of this entity is held by the Company and therefore this entity would canstitute a subsidiary under the Companies Act, 2013,
However, as the Group has determined that the Company does not control the entity since there’s neither any exposure nor any right over any kind of
returns from investee. Hence, basis the requirements of IND AS 110, the same is not considered a subsidiary for the purpose of this financial staternent.

B) Holding/Fromoter company
Updater Services Private Limited

This space has been intentionally left lank
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55 Business Combinations and Acquisition of non-controlling interest
Acquisitions during the year ended March 31, 2020

On April 25, 2019, the Group acquired 75% equity ownership in Matrix Business Services India Private Limited ("Matrix") by investing a total of ¥ 3,915.01 lakhs as equity share
capital. Matrix is primarily engaged in the business of providing assurance services. claims processing, including employee background verifications checks and product and process
audits inter alia of warehouses, depots, distributors and distribution centres, retail points and outlets and franchisees. Investment recorded during the previous year includes ¥ 965.16
lakhs on account of obligation to purchase the remaining equity shares in the future, recognised pursuant to Sharcholder's Agreement between the Group and the promoters of Malrix,

On September 5, 2019, the Group acquired 76% equity ownership in Washroom Hygiene Concepts Private Limited ("WHC") by investing a total of ¥ 1,520.00 lakhs as equity share
capital. WHC is primarily engaged in the business of providing washroom sanitizing services and hygiene solutions, primarily female hygiene solutions, viz sanitary napkin vending &
disposal and supply of third party sanitary products. Investment recorded during the previous year includes & 360.63 lakhs on account of obligation to purchase the remaining equity
shares in the future, recognised pursuant to Shareholder's Agreement between the Company and the promoters of WHC.

Consequent to the future purchases, the Group will hold 100% of the equity shares of Matrix and WHC.

The Group has elected not 1o recognise a non-controlling interest in Matrix and WHC as the unacquired shares from the promoters of Matrix and WHC are recognised as financial
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and both Matrix and WHC are considered to be 100% owned by the Group for the purpose of consolidation,

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed Fair Value on acquisition

Particulars Matrix WHC Total
Property, Plant and Equipment 173.00 436.00 609.00
Intangible Assets 135.00 - 135.00
Inventories 300 3100 34.00
Trade Receivables 1.952.00 347 .00 2.299.00
Cash and Bank Balances 791.00 18,00 809,00
Loans and Advances 819.00 19.00 838.00
Non-current tax assets {Net) 62.00 - 62,00
Other Assets - current and non-current - 10.00 10.00
Deferred Tax Assets - 9.00 9.00
Total Assets taken over (A) 3,935.00 870.00 4,805.00
Trade Payables -660.00 -148.00 -808.00
Other Liabilities - current -506.00 -30.00 336,00
Provisions - current and non-current -47.00 -37.00 -84.00
Other long term liabilities -4.00 -3.00 <700
Total liabilitics assumed (B) -1,217.00 -218.00 -1,435.00
Liabilities towards promotors of Matrix {Note i) (C) -619.00 - -619.00
Identifiable Intangible Assets on acquisition
Customer Relationship (Note ii) 77.00 288.00 365.00
Non Compete (Note iii) 111.00 104.00 215.00
Vendor Contract (Note iv) . 617.00 617.00
Brand (MNote v) - 155.00 155.00
Total identifiable intangible assets on acquisition (D) 188.00 1,164,040 1,352.00
Deferred Tax Liability on account of identified intangible assets on acquisition
Deferred Tax Liabilitites -47 32 -202.96 -340.27
Total Deferred Tax liability on identificd intangible assets -47.32 =292.96 -340.27
Non-controlling interests measured at fair value - - -
Goodwill arising on acquisition (Mote vi) (E} 2,637.32 350,96 299427
Total purchase consideration (A+B+C+D+E) 4,877.00 1,880.00 6,757.00

Naote i

On the date of acquisition of Matrix, Matrix had a refund of Income Tax Receivable for the Assessment Years 2018-19 and 2019-20 amounting to INR 619 lakhs, As per the terms of the
investment agreement entered for the acquisition of Matrix. upon receipt of the aforementioned refund, the Group is required to pay the refund received Lo the promotors of Matrix, as
defined in the investment agreement. A financial liability towards this refund is recognised in the consolidated financial statements as shown above against the refund of Income Tax
Recervable asset

Note ii

Customer contracts and related Customer relationships include the relationships that Matrix and WHC have established with customers that are tied to them through a contract, as well as
the potential extension of such contracts/additional relationships that would arise as a result of these contracts, and therefore, meet both the contractual/legal criteria and the separability
crilerion for recognition of an Intangible Asset under 'Ind AS 38 Intangible Assels'

“The income approach has been considered for arriving at the value of the intangible asset as defined in "Ind AS 113 Fair Value Measurement”, The intangible asset is considered having
a useful life of five years from the date of acquisition.
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Note iii
Non compete is based on a contractual agreement which protects the value ol the purchased assets from Matrix and WHC (both tangible and intangible) by restricting the respective
promoters’ competilive conduct post the respective investment dates and accordingly, meet both the contractual/legal criteria and separability criterion for recognition of an Imangible
Asset under 'Ind AS 38 Intangible Assets’.

As per the investment agreements for Matrix and WHC. the promoters have agreed to non-competence for a period of 7 years from the expiry of Contract of service or the promaoters
ceasing to hold any securities of Matrix and WHC (l.e. after June 30, 2021 and June 30, 2022 respectively). Thus cffectively 8 - 10 vears from the date of acquisition.

The income approach has been considered for arriving at the value of the intangible assel as defined in "Ind AS 113 Fair Value Measurement”.

Note iv
Vendor Contract is an agreement where the vendor has agreed 1o supply agreed products for a specified pertod of time and within a specific geographic area exclusively to WHC and
meet both the contractual/legal criteria and the separability criterion for recognition of an Intangible Asset under‘Ind AS 38 Intangible Assets'

The income approach has been considered for arriving at the value of the intangible asset as defined in "Ind AS 113 Fair Value Measurement” The mtangible asset is considered having
a useful life of five years (rom the date of acquisition..

Note v

WHC uses the trademark "Washroom Hygiene Concepts' for its traditional as well as new businesses. The Group will continue to use the similar strategy in future for all its new
generation businesses. The brand serves to create associations and expectations among products made by WHC. This meets the legal eriterion and the separability criterion for
recognition of an Intangible Asset under 'Ind AS 38 Intangible Assets’

The income approach has heen considered for arriving at the value of the intangible assct as defined i "Ind AS 113 Fair Value Measurement”, The intangible asset is considered having
an indefinite useful life and will be assessed for impairment every year.

Note vi
The goodwill of INR 2,994.27 lakhs comprises the value of expected synergies arising from the acguisition which is nol separately recognised. None of the goodwill recognised 15
expecled to be deduetible for income tax purposes.

The goodwill is considered having an indefinite useful life and will be assessed for impairment every year,

From the date of acquisition. Matrix and WHC have contributed INR 6,977 81 lakhs and INR 809 88 lakhs of revenue respectively and TNR 881 95 lakhs and INR (65.24) lakhs 1o the
profit before tax of the Group respectively. If the combination had taken place at the beginning of the year, revenue from continuing operations would have been [NR 133,641.30 lakhs
and the profit before 1ax for the Group would have been INR 5.188.07 lakhs.

Note vii
The fair value of the trade receivables of Matrix and WHC amount to INR 2,299 lakhs The gross amount of trade receivables is INR 2.312 lakhs. However, it is expected thal the full
contractual amounts can be collected

Purchase consideration Matrix WHC Total

Cash paid for purchase ol current cquity shareholding 391184 1.520.00 543184
Redemption lability 965.16 360.63 1,325.79
Total 4,877.00 1,880.63 6,757.63

During the financial year 201920, the Company has acquired 75% stake in Matrix Business Services India Private Limited at an agreed price of INR 3.911 84 lakhs from the promoters
of Matrix and 76%s stake in Washroom Fygiene Solutions Private Limited at an agreed price of INR [,520.00 lakhs. As per the Shareholder's Agreement between Campany, these wo
companies and its erstwhile promoters, the Company has an obligation to purchase the remaining shares held by the promoters of such companies based on agreed methodology per the
purchase agreeement, Accordingly, the Company has recognised a redemption lability for the present value of such future obligation based on a best estimate available with the
mangement.

Signilicant merease/ (decrease) in the EBITDA of Matrix and WHC would result in higher/ (lowen) fair value of the redemption liability. Changes to the fair value of the redemption
liability will be recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The purchase consideration has been computed as follows:

Matrix
¥ " Purchase consideration
Particulars No of shares Price per share s Stake
in lakhs
Tranche | 3,103,600 1,248 3915 75.0%
Tranche Il (on or before June 30, 2021) 52276 1,395 729 12.5%
Tranche I {on or before June 30, 2022) 52,276 2,167 1.133 12 5%
Total shares 4,18.211 5777 100.0%
WHC
Particulars No of shares Price per share punha%c TRETRE Stake
in lakhs
Tranche | (acquired) 73,833 2,059 1,520 76.0%
Tranche It (on or before June 30, 2020) 13,600 2,059 280 14 095
Tranche Il (on or before June 30, 2021) 9,715 2,059 200 10.0%

Total 97,148 2,000 100.0%




Updater Services Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(AN amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

56 The Ind AS financial statements of the Group for the year ended March 31, 2020, included in these consolidated Ind AS financial statements have been restated
during the curent period for reasons stated below. These adjustments to the consolidated Ind AS financial statements have been made to the respective
comparative consolidated Ind AS financial statements presented as at March 31, 2020

. 31" March 2020 31" March 2020 ;
1
Sn No Particulars (Restated) (Published) Adjustments Nature
s bEasHE st o 1,217.71 35| (11740 Lower amortization now
acquisition
e corrected.
Depreciation and : ;
s 1,616.64 1,499.24 117.40] (Having effect to Profit & Loss)
amortization
: ProPcrty, Plant and 1.995.02 2,083.92 (88.90) Revenue expel‘ldltl:ll‘e capitalized
Equipment now rectified.
D|Repairs & Maintenance 130.35 41.45 88.90| (Having effect to Profit & Loss)
Goodwill and Deferred tax
E|Goedwill on consolidation 4,569.90 4,229.63 340.27| liability netted off earlier, now
grossed.
FiDeferred Tax Liability 310.72 310.72] (Mo effect to Profit & Loss)
Retained eamnings as on
- April 01, 2019 e e R Deferred Tax Assets on items
i liminated during consolidation
H|Deferred Tax Expense (66.44) 5.75 (72.19)]  not reversed now rectified.
I| Deferred Tax Assets (Net) Ao ok 2,903 86| (188.51)
Profit/(Loss) before Tax 4,736.54 4,942.84 (206.30) B+D
Profit/(Loss) after Tax 4,124.25| 4,258.36 (134.11) B+D+H
Tt U pecheta 4,009.87 414398 (3411
Income
Earmings per share (Rs) 7.79) 8.04 (0.25)
Diluted earnings per
.7 F] 2
shaire {Rs) 1.73 7 9| (0.25)

57 Impact of Covid-19 Pandemic
The outbreak of Coronavirus (COVID -19) pandemic globally and in India is causing significant disturbance and slowdown of economic activity. The Group
has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 on the carrying amounts of receivables, unbilled revenues and
investments, property, plant & Equipment, right of use assets and intangible assets including goodwill. In developing the assumptions relating to the possible
future uncertainties in the global economic conditions because of this pandemic, the Group, as at the date of approval of these financial statements has used
internal and external sources of information including credit reports and related information and economic forecasts, Basis such evaluation, the management
does not expect any adverse impact on its future cash flows and shall be able to continue as a going concern and meet its obligations as and when they fall due.
The impact of COVID-19 on the Group’s financial statements may differ from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial statements. The Group
will continue to monitor future economic conditions for any significant change.

58 Code on wages, 2019 and Code on Social Security, 2020
Parliament has approved the Code on Wages, 2019 and the Code on Social Security, 2020 which govern, and are likely to impact, the contributions by the
Company towards certain employee benefits. The government has released draft rules for these Codes and has invited suggestions from stakeholders which are
under active consideration by the concerned Ministry, The effective date of these Codes have not yet been notified and the Company will assess the impact of
these codes as and when they become eftective and will provide for the nppropriate impact in its financial statements in the period in which, the Code becomes
effective and the related rules to determine the financial impact are published.

59 Events after the Reporting Period
There were no significant adjusting events that ocowrred subsequent to the reporting period.

60 Standards issued but not effective
There are no new standards that are notified, but not yet effective, upto the date of issuance of the Group’s financial statements.

61 Previous Year Figures

Previous year's figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the current year's classification /

disclosure.
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